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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEWwE

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of China Baofeng (International) Limited (previous
known as Mastercraft International Holdings Limited), (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 of the Company.

2016 was an important year for the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”). 19
February 2016 represented an important date for the Group’s
development of the whole year, when Fung Teng Enterprises
Limited (“Fung Teng”) completed the acquisition of 75%
equity interests in the Company and obtained management
control. On 12 May 2016, the name of the Company was
changed to China Baofeng (International) Limited. Previously,
the Group was principally engaged in the production and sales
of portable lighting products and home accessory products.
Upon obtaining of its control by Fung Teng, the Group
has gradually started its principal business in investment,
construction and operation of photovoltaic power generation
projects (the “Photovoltaic Power Generation Business”),
while still maintaining its operation in the business of portable
lighting products and home accessory products (the “Lighting
Products Business”).

2016 was also a highly successful year for the Group. Under
the leadership of the new management, the integration of the
Group’s new and existing principal business proceeded well,
leading to a turnaround of the decreasing trend in earnings in
the year 2015. During the year under review, the Group placed
25,200,000 new shares on 30 March 2016 and 62,496,000
new shares on 8 September 2016 respectively to support the
successful transformation, with an aggregate of approximately
HK$257,901,000 of net proceeds raised, which was mainly
used for the investment, construction and operation of a
photovoltaic plant located in Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region.
The photovoltaic plant was put into operation successfully in
the third quarter of 2016. The investment in the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business brought about substantial increase
in the Group's profits for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Our profits for the year ended 31 December 2016 rose 8.8
times to HK$141,545,000 as compared with HK$14,432,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
On economic front, in view of the continued sluggish recovery
and weakened growth momentum of the global economy
in 2016, the development of China’s external economic
environment still perplexing, then affected the domestic
economy and structural adjustment.

On environmental front, the Yale University in America
issued the 2016 Report on Environmental Performance Index,
which ranked 180 countries’ performance on high-priority
environmental issues in Environmental Performance Index
(EPI) based on their scores in some indicators. One of the
key indicators is air quality. According to such report, China
ranked second to last in respect of air quality, and ranked the
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last in respect of PM2.5. China has been severely affected by
high concentration of PM2.5, with its footprint substantially
covering all areas across the country. Consequently, it is a
matter of great urgency to carry out environmental protection
measures and reduce emissions in China. Currently, the haze
pollution problem has seriously affected people’s daily lives
and compromised people’s health. Efforts in promoting clean
energy should be exerted without delay.

While in policy making, the 13th Five Year Plan for the
Development of Electricity B+ = E])) was jointly
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission
and the National Energy Administration on 7 November 2016.
It is targeted that the solar power generation capacity would
be 110GW by 2020, among which, photovoltaic electricity
would be more than 105GW. To maintain a steady growth in
photovoltaic electricity every year premised on the “12th Five
Year Plan” is expected to benefit the long-term and stable
development of photovoltaic power generation industry.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The photovoltaic power generation industry is expected to
maintain a steady growth momentum in 2017. Due to the fact
that air pollution problems have caused great concern, the PRC
government would introduce a series of policies to encourage
and support the development of renewable energies including
photovoltaic electricity, in order to improve environmental
protection, ease the haze pollution problem and stimulate
economic development. In addition, technological innovation
will continue to be the driving force of the renewable energy
sector. Renewable energy investment has a huge potential
of enhancement in capacity and profit, supported by the
improvements in conversion efficiency of solar modules,
equipment quality and stability as well as decreasing cost.

In the coming new year, the Group, while stepping up its
investment in the newly-built photovoltaic power generation
facilities, will further strengthen its internal control and risks
management, improve the work safety in our power plant
and attach much importance to technological innovation and
scientific management, with a view to enhance corporate
vitality, financial performance, as well as the Group’s
profitability by further optimizing its systems, processes and
other incentives. In terms of the Lighting Products Business, we
will continue to strengthen our management and cost control
with an effort to reverse or slow down the decreasing trend in
profit.

With the collaborative efforts of our staff, we will continue
to invest in clean energy projects in particular photovoltaic
electricity projects. Based on the forgoing, we are confident
that we will deliver better return for our Group. By putting
in persistent efforts, we are expecting 2017 to be another
rewarding year for the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to
the hard work of our staff, and the support of the Group from
all our shareholders and stakeholders.

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

29 March 2017
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China Baofeng (International) Limited FEIZE 2 (EK)ERLQT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWEDN

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Photovoltaic Power Generation Industry

The global photovoltaic power industry has experienced a
robust growth in 2016 attributable to the growing awareness
for environmental protection and the improved cost and
production efficiency in solar power system. Being one of the
top four major markets for global solar power installation in
2016, China is dedicated to establish a low-carbon energy
infrastructure and to develop its clean energy industry. In 2016,
China’s cumulative photovoltaic power generation capacity
has experienced rapid growth and new photovoltaic capacity
of 34.54 gigawatt ("GW") was commissioned, representing
approximately 128% growth compared to the installation of
15.13 GW of capacity in 2015. China’s solar energy capacity is
expected to continue to grow at a compound annual growth
rate ("CAGR") of 16.9% from 2017 to 2021. It is believed that
a favourable regulatory environment, advances in technology
and the government support for environmental protection
will continue to contribute to the growth of the photovoltaic
power industry in China. Under the Strategic Plan of Energy
Development (2014-2020) issued by the State Council in
June 2014, China targets to install a cumulative photovoltaic
power generation capacity of 100GW by 2020. In addition,
the 13th Five Year Plan for the Development of Electricity
was jointly issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission (“NDRC"”) and the National Energy Administration
("NEA") on 7 November 2016. It is targeted that photovoltaic
generation capacity would be more than 105GW by 2020. At
the same time, local governments will also provide subsidies
to photovoltaic power generation projects. The maturity of
photovoltaic technology in China has led to a decrease in
manufacturing cost and has contributed to the sustainable
development of the whole photovoltaic power industry value
chain. As photovoltaic technology is environment-friendly and
pollution-free, it also contributes to China’s drive to reduce
carbon emissions.

Portable Lighting Products Industry

The development in the global portable lighting products
industry appeared to be lackluster due to the increase in
competition as well as manufacturing costs. The United States
portable lighting market, the principal market of our Group’s
lighting products, has been highly saturated with numerous
firms selling a diverse range of products manufactured both
domestically and internationally. The manufacturing costs for
lighting products have been high due to the growth in prices of
raw materials and increased labour costs in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the core business of the Group
has been integrated into two major segments, which are (i)
photovoltaic power generation in the PRC (the “Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business”); and (ii) the sales of lighting
products including portable lighting products, shades for the
lamps and furniture set and other home accessory products
(the "Lighting Products Business”).

Benefiting from the impressive development in the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business, the Group’s operation delivered a
strong improvement of its profitability during the year 2016.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's revenue
grew by approximately 57% to approximately HK$611.1
million mainly attributable to the revenue contribution from
the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business which commenced
operation in the second half of 2016. Profit attributable to
the owners of the Company increased by approximately 8.8
times to approximately HK$141.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 mainly attributable to the profit contribution
and high profit margin of the Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business.

Photovoltaic Power Generation Business

During the year under review, the Group has made remarkable
achievement in expanding its scope of operation into the
clean energy sector of the PRC through strategic planning
and organic development of its Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business. Since the first half of 2016, the Group
has participated in a photovoltaic project in Yinchuan City
(the "Yinchuan Project”), Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region
("Ningxia”) and built its photovoltaic power generation
plant with facilities provided by Yinchuan Binhe New District
Investment and Development (Group) Co., Ltd.* (48 JI| /& 7
FRIEEEE(SEE)BRRAA), astate-controlled limited
liability company in the PRC, through lease arrangement.
On 30 June 2016, the Group obtained the approval for on-
grid connection from Ningxia branch company of the State
Grid Corporation of China in respect of the Yinchuan Project
with a capacity of 390 megawatt (“MW") and the Group has
commenced photovoltaic power generation since July 2016. As
confirmed by the State Grid Corporation of China, for the six
months ended 31 December 2016, the Group has generated
an aggregate of 243.5 million kilowatt-hour (“kWh") power
and the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business has become
the Group’s significant revenue stream, accounting for
approximately 33% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
With only six months’ operation, the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business has already become the key growth driver
of the Group’s profit, contributing approximately 94% of the
Group's total segment profit for the year.

*  For identification purpose only
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China Baofeng (International) Limited FEIZE 2 (EK)ERLQT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWEDN

The Group'’s revenue from photovoltaic power generation
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$198.6 million. The segment profit margin of photovoltaic
power generation was approximately 79.0%. As the Group did
not engage in the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business in
the year ended 31 December 2015, no comparative figures for
such period are available.

Lighting Products Business

During the year under review, the manufacture of lighting
products supplied by the Group was outsourced to
independent contract manufacturers in the PRC. With the
continuing increase in costs of labour and raw materials in
the PRC, the costs from the contract manufacturers for the
Group's lighting products remained high. North America was
the principal market of the Group’s lighting products. Due
to keen competition in such market, prices of the Group's
products have traded at a low level. As a result, the profit and
profit margin of the Group in this segment continued to drop
in year 2016 although the Group recorded a mild growth in
revenue from this segment. The Group’s revenue from sales of
lighting products for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$412.4 million (2015: HK$389.7 million),
contributing approximately 67% (2015: 100%) of the Group’s
total revenue. The segment profit margin of Lighting Products
Business decreased to 2.5% for the year ended 31 December
2016 from 5.8% in previous year.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Photovoltaic Power Generation Business

Driven by the PRC government’s (the “PRC Government”)
dedication to establishing a low-carbon system, promoting
the use of renewable energy and implementing a series of
supportive policies, the solar energy industry in China has
been developing rapidly in recent years. For 2016, the Group's
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business delivered remarkable
results by developing an installed capacity of approximately
390MW. The Directors remain positive and are full of
confidence for the Group’s Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business in 2017.

With the PRC Government promoting the development of
the solar energy industry through favorable initiatives, the
Group believes the entire solar industry will continue to thrive.
The NEA has launched the Frontrunner Program since 2015
with the aim to selecting highly efficient solar enterprises
with cost and technology competitive advantages to deploy
cutting-edge technologies in building solar projects in pilot
provinces, facilitating the use of advanced solar products and
enhancing the overall technology level of the solar industry.
In the long run, this program will push forward technological
advancement, facilitate healthy growth and accelerate
improvement of the solar industry.
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In accordance with the implementation of national poverty
alleviation strategies, the NDRC and NEA jointly announced the
opinions on the Implementation of Solar Poverty Alleviation
Program (the “Opinion”) in March 2016, which stated that
solar energy was suitable for deploying in household, village
and larger scale centralised power plants, considering it is
clean, environmental friendly, technologically reliable and able
to generate stable revenue. Pursuing solar poverty alleviation
programs in areas with more bountiful solar resources is
believed to conform to the strategies of poverty alleviation
and development of clean and low-carbon energy, while
favorable for growth of solar energy industry and raise the
income of poor households and accordingly, the application
of photovoltaic power generation in poverty alleviation will
be supported by the PRC Government. Ningxia is one of the
core districts for the implementation of photovoltaic poverty
alleviation policies as captured by the Opinion.

In 2017, being an emerging solar energy industry player,
the Group will continue to leverage the knowledge and
experiences of its management to evaluate and seek for
appropriate opportunities for the further expansion of the
Group's established Photovoltaic Power Generation Business
and identify opportunities with reasonable returns in the solar
power industry. Standing firmly on the success of the Yinchuan
Project, the Group intends to focus on and further direct
resources to develop of its Photovoltaic Power Generation
Business in accordance with the national policies. The Group
will continue to look for opportunities to further strengthen
its capabilities and expertise in this segment, including but
not limited to participation in the poverty alleviation program
and other national or regional photovoltaic programs to
achieve sustainable development of its Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business. The Directors believe that Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business will continue to be the Group’s
main growth driver, and the strategic development of the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business is for the benefit of
the shareholders as a whole.

Lighting Products Business

The Group’s lighting products segment recorded a significant
downturn in profitability in the recent years and it is expected
that the Lighting Products Business of the Group will continue
to be negatively affected by the keen competition in its
principal markets and rising costs of labour and raw materials.
Accordingly in the coming year, the Group will use its best
endeavor to implement stringent cost control measures so as
to improve profit margin of its Lighting Products Business. With
a view to achieve better return to the shareholders, the Group
would integrate its resources strategically and may place less
importance on the Lighting Products Business going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEmED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Segment Information

The Group reported its financial information by two segments:
(i) photovoltaic power generation in the PRC and (ii) sales of
lighting products including portable lighting products, shades
for the lamps and furniture sets and other home accessory
products. The table below is an analysis of the Group’s revenue,
segment profit and segment profit margin of its operation by
segment for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016:

B % [ R

PEER

REEZRME D BREEMBEER - ()PP EEKRK
BERWHERAER  BEBHARAER - &
SERFAMERAMKEN R BE_T—HFR=-
E-RE+A=ZT—HILFE  xERZEHED
FEZ S e - o EBUE Ko SR =R S AT HI &R N
™

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=1-HLEE

Segment

% of Segment

Segment

Profit % of Segment Profit

Photovoltaic power

Revenue
g
HK$'000
THER

Revenue
e
Bt

Profit
Gill:
eyl

HK$'000

TR

Margin
pix:
AEx
(%)
(%)

Revenue
Wogs
HK$'000
Fib7T

Revenue
Bl
Bok

Margin

D

FE
(%)
t

generation
RAEE 198,635 33 156,928 79.0 - - - -
Sales of lighting products
SHERRAREE 412,422 67 10,406 2.5 389,740 100 22,721 5.8
Total
@zt 611,057 100 167,334 27.4 389,740 100 22,721 5.8
Revenue s

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of the
Group was derived from photovoltaic power generation
and sales of lighting products amounting to approximately
HK$611.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
57% from approximately HK$389.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The significant increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the commencement of the Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business in the second half of the year
ended 31 December 2016, which contributed approximately
HK$198.6 million or 33% to the Group's revenue for the year.

BE-_Z—XR"E+-A=+—HILFE  KAEEKS
RERKRESENEERBPER © £5611,100,000
BT BEE_Z—AF+_A=1+—BLFEND
389,700,000/ ST IN#AI57 % » Wk ARG N £ B
HREE - Z—"F+-_A=+—"BIFET+FEH
AIRE N IRBEBEIEE - FRARERRTZEEY
198,600,000/ 7L833% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the gross profit
of the Group increased by approximately 183% from
approximately HK$77.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to approximately HK$218.4 million. The gross profit
margin of the Group improved from approximately 19.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 35.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The significant increase
in gross profit and gross profit margin of the Group for the
year was attributable to contribution of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business and the gross profit margin of which was
higher compared with the Lighting Products Business.

Operating costs

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total operating
costs increased to approximately HK$85.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 48% from HK$58.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase in operating
costs was primarily due to operating expenses in developing
the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business.

Finance costs

The Group recorded finance costs amounting to approximately
HK$2.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
nil). The Group incurred such finance costs during the year
mainly due to the drawdown of bank loans, the proceeds of
which were primarily used to support the development of the
Photovoltaic Power Generation Business.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$141.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
significantly increased by 8.8 times from approximately
HK$14.4 million profit for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The Group’s net profit margin rose from 3.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to 23.2% for the year ended 31
December 2016. Earnings per share increased significantly
from HK3.01 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 to HK27.29 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group was in a good financial position during the year
ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016, cash
and cash equivalents of the Group were approximately
HK$316.3 million, representing an increase of 14.8 times from
approximately HK$20.0 million as at 31 December 2015. This
was mainly due to the fund raised from share placings and
drawdown of short-term bank borrowings during the year.

BEENWEDN

EFNRENR
BHE_Z—RF+-_A=+—"BILFE A£EH
EMHBEE-_ZT-—AF+-_A=+—"HILEEND
77,200,000 % JT 1% N #7 183% & 47 218,400,000 /&
TLe AEBEFNEREZ-_T—RHF+_A=1+—8
IFEN19.8%ENEHE—_T—"F+_A=1
—HIEFEMHIZ5.7% ° REEAEBERNREF X
RNIBIENMTIBRR N REEERN TR R ZERT
FRERERBRAERESHNENE -

mE R
BE-Z-AXFT-_A=ST—HLEFE  REERE

HEINZE#985,900,0008 7 ' REE-_T—RHF+ =
A =4+—H It fFE#58,200,000/# LI MN#A)48% o
EERAENTEZHRRERNIREEEBHLEH
SRR o

HHKEA

HE-Z— X "F+-_A=+—HIEE K"EBERSE
B 75 B 492,700,000 L ( — 2 —H4F ) - K&
EFRNELEBTHER T EORRIBITERR
B BHAMBREIEANI AR BEEEENE
)Eo

AATEE AEEEF
BHE_ZT—XR"E+-A=1+—HIEFE XxRA%E
AE(E % R 40 4141,500,00087C * BBE_T—H
F+_A=+—HEFENRFE 14,400,000 T
AIEHENNS.81F - AEBELF KB E_ZT—HF T
A=+ —BIEFEEMB IR AEREHE T —NE+
ZA=1+—BILFEN232% - ERANHEE =
T-—RAF+_A=+—HLEFERNER3.01EILK
BEEHE—E—AF+_A=+—BIFENER
2729784l -

REBEERVEER

HE-ZT— X "F+-_A=+—HIEE  AEBEHE
MAB - R-TE—XNFE+_A=+—0 A&EH
HE RIREEEWLA316,300,00087T » R ZE
—RhE+ZA=+—H#20,000,000/ T 1114.8
Z - EFXrZHRNTFRARMNEEEEES LB EHIRE
TTIEFRETER -



China Baofeng (International) Limited FEIZE 2 (EK)ERLQT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWEDN

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s primary
sources of funding included cash generated from its operating
activities, equity financing activities and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total bank borrowing
of HK$250 million (2015: Nil). The Group’s current ratio
(current asset divided by current liabilities) was 2.2 times as
at 31 December 2016, which was comparable to 2.4 times as
at 31 December 2015. Considering the Group’s current level
of cash and bank balances and expected improvement in cash
inflow from operation, the Board is confident that the Group
will have sufficient resources to meet its financial needs for
its current operations. Since photovoltaic projects require
substantial capital investments for developing and constructing
photovoltaic power plants at initial state, the Group may
require new funding in case of developing new business
opportunities.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
include the bank borrowing, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising
issued capital and reserves. Gearing ratio is not presented as
our Group had net cash (in excess of debt) as at 31 December
2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the interest-bearing bank borrowing
of the Group that will become due within a year was HK$250.0
million (2015: nil).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
were mainly held in Renminbi, US dollars and HK dollars.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly, taking into
account the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure accordingly.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group has commenced the development of the Yinchuan
Project. Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any
other significant investments as at 31 December 2016.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

In view of the positive development of the Photovoltaic Power
Generation Business of the Group, the Group may from time
to time consider appropriate opportunities for expansion of its
photovoltaic power generation capacity through participation
in or acquisition of new projects. Save as disclosed herein,
there was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2016. In the event that the Group is
engaged in any plan for material investments or capital assets,
the Company will make announcement(s) and comply with
relevant Listing Rules as and when appropriate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies by the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has a general banking
facility of HK$5,000,000 (2015: HK$5,000,000) which is
secured by the Group’s land and building with carrying amount
of approximately HK$844,000 (2015: HK$920,000).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a significant part of
the revenue of the Group was denominated in Renminbi while
the Group has transactions invoiced in US dollars and bank
loans drawn down in HK dollars, and accordingly the Group
was exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Save as disclosed herein, the amounts of other foreign
currencies involved in the Group's operation for the year ended
31 December 2016 are insignificant. Our Group did not have
a foreign currency hedging policy during the year ended 31
December 2016. However, the management monitored foreign
exchange exposure closely to keep the net exposure to an
acceptable level.

BEE D

ZERE
RIZ—RF+-A=1t—8 AEELEEREKX
HEEE -

EARE

AEBDFRERRIIER - BRAREMWEEIN
AEBR-_T—RF+-A=+—HALEBEAEME
AKE -

EAREHEXEENARNRE

ENRAEBNRBEXHRRBBRESG - AEE 7S
B2EIWEFRE - TRYERBITRENCAEE
RE - RAMEMWEEN  R_FT—RF+=-_A=
T AT EEARENEAEENEBHE - HAK
E2EEMEARERBEABENE - NRB K EE
BRARLEMRATIEAE -

ERRBHIHE
BE_Z—R"ET_A=+—RLFERN AEEY
EABMBRRRBERANERKRBERHE -

KHREE

R-ZZE—XF+-_A=+—8  KEEE—RKRRTE
ERhE 585,000,000 (= Z—F4F : 5,000,000/%8
JT) c TYHRAEBER T REFTERR > EEmMED
844,000 L (ZZF—HF : 920,000/ 7T) °

S BE /2 B
HE-_Z-R"F+_A=+—HLEFEAR rEEE
REDWEAAREE - AMAEBEBARTTH A
BENRHMAETIRREIRITE R - A KB ZAA
HOMNERE o

BRAREAWEEIN RBE-_T—R"F+_A=t
—BHLEFE AREXBHASEOEMBINESEE
Do RBE-_Z-RNF+-A=1T—HLEFE A&
B30 mSNEE SRR o AT - BIREEYIERIMNER,
B DA F R M R 1 A I SEOKF e



China Baofeng (International) Limited FEIZE 2 (EK)ERLQT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWEDN

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has capital commitment
of approximately HK$58.8 million in respect of the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment contracted but not provided
for.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments, if any, are determined
by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
Each Director may also receive a year-end bonus in respect
of each financial year. The amount of such bonus will be
determined by the remuneration committee of the Board.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total
of nine Directors and 189 employees. Total staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
HK$43.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$33.5 million). The Group’s remuneration policies were
determined with reference to the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee, as well as the results
of the Group and the market conditions. The Group provided
discretionary bonus, medical insurance and provident fund.
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 June
2012, under which the Company can grant options to, among
others, employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the
Company with a view to rewarding them for their contributions
to the Group and giving incentives to them for optimising their
future contributions to the Group. Up to the date of this report,
no share option has been granted under such share option
scheme.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
The Company conducted several fund raising activities during
the year ended 31 December 2016, details of which are listed

below:

Date of Completion

TR B 58

30 March 2016
—E-R"F=-A=1+H

8 September 2016
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FRGRIRARE

Event and net proceeds raised

EENIEEREER

Placing of 25,200,000 ordinary shares under (i)
general mandate at the placing price of
HK$2.41 per placing share pursuant to the
placing agreement dated 17 March 2016,

the aggregate net proceeds raised was
approximately HK$60.0 million. (Note 1)

BEBRAE-T—R"F=ATLENEE
WiE o BIE-RREERESESREER
192,417 T AR 25,200,0000% Z3@A% - A
%ﬁ%g%%é%ﬁmmowpm%ﬁo
TaE1

(i)

Placing of 62,496,000 ordinary shares under (i)

BE-Z2—<F+-A=+—ALFER ARAY
TS EEAED  EFEIEDT

Actual use of proceeds

FieRRERAR

as to 80%, i.e. approximately HK$48.0
million, to finance the construction and
operation of the Yinchuan Project; and
H180% - B14748,000,0008 7T » AR
BAR)IIBENRERREE &

as to 20%, i.e. approximately HK$12.0
million, as general working capital for
the existing operation of the Group
including Hong Kong headquarter.
HA20% + BN#712,000,0007 7T * 1E4
AEBBHEXY (BREBEE) H—
REBES -

as to 90%, i.e. approximately HK$178.1

' W

—E-RFENANA general mandate at the placing price of million to finance the construction and
HK$3.20 per placing share pursuant to the operation of the Yinchuan Project; and
placing agreement dated 22 August 2016, EH90% + B1%9178,100,00078 L AR
the aggregate net proceeds raised was BANRINBEENERREE &
approximately HK$197.9 million. (Note 2)

(i) as to 10%, i.e. approximately HK$19.8
BEABHA—ZT— X "FN\AZTZHHE million, intended to use as the general
B - RE—REEREEETREE working capital for existing operation
B&193.20/8 LA % 62,496,0000% @A - of the Group including Hong Kong
FrE (S FURF584 £ /5 47197,900,00078 headquarter, of which approximately
7T o (PMi3E2) HK$7.4 million was unutilised as of
31 December 2016.
HA110% + BN4919,800,00078 7T » #EF8
EREEREEL (BREABEN) B
—MREBEER  HPEE_Z—RF+
—A=+—RAREALEXI7,400,0007%
5T e
Notes: B o -
1. On 17 March 2016, the Company and GF Securities (Hong 1. RZTFE—RNF=ZA++tH  ARRIHEEZEFHF(B

Kong) Brokerage Limited (as the placing agent) entered into
a placing agreement for the placing of ordinary shares of the
Company (the”March Placing”). For details of the March
Placing, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 17 March 2016 and 21 March 2016.
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FARRF(ERARERIZ)FTLREHE - AELE
ARRMEBRR(TNARESEAD - BENARE
FHZABF2HARRAPR - E-—REFNAZ
A ZE-RFAARBEZZE-REAAN

HzRE o

2. On 22 August 2016, the Company and Haitong International
Securities Company Limited (as the placing agent) entered
into a placing agreement for the placing of ordinary shares of
the Company (“August Placing”). For details of the August
Placing, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 August 2016, 5 September 2016 and 8 September
2016.
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PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 23 December 2016, Fung Teng, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman, executive Director and
a controlling shareholder of the Company, has pledged
252,600,000 ordinary shares in the issued share capital of
the Company (the “Pledged Shares”) in favour of Bank of
Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Lender”) as a security for
a revolving credit facility up to a maximum aggregate amount
of HKD250,000,000 provided to the Company, by the Lender.
The Pledged Shares represented in aggregate approximately
44.50% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
23 December 2016. As at 23 December 2016, Fung Teng
was interested in 360,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 63.41% of the issued share capital
of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dang Yanbao (2Z¥), aged 44, is currently the
Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He is an experienced Chinese businessman and
currently the chairman of the board of directors of Ningxia
Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (EEELREREBRMNA
FR A ®]). The subsidiaries of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group
Co., Ltd.* (EEELREREERNBR AR include a number
of companies engaged in the coal and energy sector, such as
Inner Mongolia Zhongbao Energy Co., Ltd.* (R &G ELER
AR AR, Ningxia Baofeng Energy Catalytic Co., Ltd.* (EEE
Lt R{E{LBR 2 F) and Ningxia Baofeng Group Hongsi Coal
Mining Co., Ltd.* (BEELEEAVEE AR AR]). Mr. Dang
graduated at Ningxia University in July 1996 and was awarded
an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration
from Peking University in July 2007. Mr. Dang holds several
public offices in China, including committee member of the
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a representative at the 11th People’s Congress of Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, and counselor for the People’s
Government of Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region. Mr. Dang was
appointed as executive Director of the Company with effect
from 30 January 2016 and as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Dang Yanbao is the sole shareholder of Fung Teng which
in turn is interested in 360,000,000 Shares (representing
approximately 63.41% of the total issued share capital of the
Company). Mr. Dang is also the sole director of Fung Teng.

Mr. Dang Yanbao is the uncle of Mr. Dang Zidong, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Dang Zidong (¥ B X), aged 27, is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. He is also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group namely Jing Pai Management
LTD.*(R M & B AR A7), Stand Nice Limited and Honest
Joy International Limited). He graduated from Beijing Geely
University (1t =& A 2) in 2012 with a degree in industry
and business administration. He was the general manager
of Ningxia Huixin Microfinance Co., Ltd.* (EEE{Z/)EE
FBEBRZAF]) before joining the Group. Mr. Dang Zidong was
previously responsible for sales in Ningxia Baofeng Energy
Group Co., Ltd.* (EEE LY REER M BR A F]) and had
held the position of manager of marketing and planning
department in Huifengxiang Commercial Holdings Co., Ltd.*
CELXmEERAR QA He was appointed as executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Dang Zidong is the nephew of Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dang
Yanbao is the sole shareholder and sole director of Fung
Teng, the controlling shareholder of the Company, which is
interested in 360,000,000 Shares (representing approximately
63.41% of the total issued share capital of the Company).

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Liu Yuanguan (27t %), aged 50, is currently the chief
executive officer of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.*
(EEEZgREERH AR AF]). Heis also a director of
subsidiaries of the Group namely Shenzhen Qianhai Baofeng
New Energy Development Co., Ltd* (F Il 51 /8 B 2L ¥ & )R
% & B R A Al), and Ningxia Baofeng Photovoltaic Power
Generation Company Limited* (¥ EE L X KRBEFEER A
Al). He is a veteran in the coal mining, energy and chemical
industry with more than 29 years of experience. Mr. Liu holds
the title of senior engineer and has a master’s degree from
Xi'an University of Science and Technology awarded in July
2005 and a bachelor degree from China University of Mining
and Technology (formerly known as China Institute of Mining
and Technology) awarded in July 1987. He was appointed as
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 January
2016.

Mr. Gao Jianjun (§#E), aged 42, is currently the vice
president of Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (&

BELREREERMABMAT]). Mr. Gao has over 21 years
of experience in the coal mining, crude oil and energy
industry. Mr. Gao graduated at Yan’an University in chemical
engineering technology in July 2013, and holds the title of
engineer. He was appointed as executive Director of the

Company with effect from 30 January 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Hoo (¥8%), aged 55, obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England
and Wales in 1995. Mr. Cheng has over 26 years' experience
in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and senior partner
of Nixon Peabody CWL. He was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy (##3%), aged 47, is an
investment banker with over 21 years of corporate finance
experience in Hong Kong. He worked in various financial
institutions in the past and was responsible for handling
corporate finance transactions, including initial public offering
and mergers and acquisitions activities. He graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Science degree in
August 1992. He was appointed as non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 26 September 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (H#%), aged 61, is currently
the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He has nearly 40 years’ experience in accounting,
auditing and consultancy practice. In 1977, He joined Price
Waterhouse, and then joined Klynveld Main Goerdeler and
Morgan Bank. He founded his own accounting and consulting
firm in 1985. His firm then merged with Hong Kong Grant
Thornton in 1990 and was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the PRC thereafter and stationed in
Beijing for seven years since then. From 2001 to 2003, he
worked in a local bank and participated in the bank’s mergers
and acquisitions business. Since 2003, he has been working
at his own accounting and consulting firm and provided
professional services for local and international companies.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony holds a doctorate degree in
Philosophy and a master degree in Business Administration,
both from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 19 February 2016.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony is currently an independent non-
executive director of Melco International Development Limited
and Summit Ascent Holdings Limited, both of them are
listed on the Stock Exchange, and an independent director
of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc., a company listed on
the NASDAQ Capital Market and Alpha Peak Leisure Inc., a
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange Inc. He was
previously an independent non-executive director of three
Hong Kong listed companies, namely, Beijing Sports and
Entertainment Industry Group Limited (formerly ASR Logistics
Holdings Limited), Value Convergence Holdings Limited and
Cinderella Media Group Limited (formerly Recruit Holdings
Limited).
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Mr. Xia Zuoquan (E{£%£), aged 53, is currently a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He studied computer science
in Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering* (1t 5 8ff &
EBT) (now known as University of Science & Technology of
Beijing* (AL mEHE K E)) from 1985 to 1987 and he graduated
from Guanghua School of Management of Peking University
with an MBA in 2007. Mr. Xia worked in the Hubei branch of
The People’s Insurance Company* (B A R{RE A R]) and
joined Shenzhen BYD Battery Company Limited in 1997. Mr.
Xia held positions as an executive director and a vice president
of BYD Company Limited. Mr. Xia is a non-executive director
of the BYD Company Limited and the chairman of Shenzhen
Zhengxuan Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.* CFIJITH EEFZE
BIRAF]), the chairman of Annuo Youda Gene Technology
(Beijing) Co. Ltd.* (RHEEEEARE (tR) ARRQA), the
chairman of Shenzhen Ramos Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (%
31| 7F BE EE S R B R A 7)), director of Shenzhen UniFortune
Supply Chain Service Co., Ltd.* (FRIITHE & F|LHERERS
R 2 @)), director of Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Corp.* (&I
BERHE B BR 2 8]) and director of Guangdong Beizhi Cepin
Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (&R &% A E MR G
BR 7). He was appointed as independent non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

Mr. Guo xuewen (22 73), aged 51, is currently the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He is currently
the CEO of Shenzhen MY Capital Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
CFRYIERERNEEEIE AR A7), He was a partner of Heidrick
& Struggles, a consulting firm in the United States of America,
and previously founded Beijing Viewhigh Technologies Co.,
Ltd.* bR/ FEEEHRER AR and served as its chairman.
Mr. Guo graduated from Tsinghua University and holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom and a doctorate degree
from the University of East Anglia in the United Kingdom. He
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 19 February 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Sheung Chi (FR¥ ), aged 38, is the chief financial
officer of the Company. He joined the Group in January 2017
and is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in the financial
industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) Degree from the University of Hong
Kong. He is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Jiao Yingchen (558JR), aged 34, is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. She holds a bachelor degree in Economics from
the University of lllinois Urbana-Champaign in the United State
of America and a master degree in Corporate Governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over 10
years of experience in the field of corporate governance and
investor relationship management for listed companies. She
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 4 October 2016.
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The Company endeavors to maintain high standard of
corporate governance for the enhancement of shareholders’
value and provide transparency, accountability and
independence. The Company has complied with the required
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the year ended 31 December 2016, except for the following:

Under code provision C.2.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, an issuer should have an internal audit function. The
Company does not have an internal audit function for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Taking into account the size
and complexity of the operations of the Group, the Company
considers that the existing organisation structure and the close
supervision of the management could maintain sufficient risk
management and internal control of the Group. However,
the Board would review the need to set up an internal audit
function from time to time and may set up an internal audit
team if the need arises.

Save as disclosed above, the Board considered that the
Company had complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
in securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiry, each
Director confirmed that during his tenure in the year ended 31
December 2016, he had fully complied with the required code
of conduct and there was no event of non-compliance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and
monitoring the business and performance of the Group. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-
to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members and will continue to adopt a board diversity
policy. The Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspective, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The appointment of Directors will continue to be
made on a merit basis.
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Due to the change in the control of the Company on 19
February 2016, all the 6 former Directors resigned from
directorship of the Company.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
nine directors, consisting of four executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board and chairman of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer)

Mr. Liu Yuanguan

Mr. Gao Jianjun

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Hoo
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xia Zuoquan (member of Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from time
to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 17.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director who served his
term of office during the year ended 31 December 2016 of
his independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

For all the former executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors who served their terms of office during
the year ended 31 December 2016, they have entered service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years and
two years respectively commencing from their respective
appointment dates and should continue thereafter unless and
until terminated by either parties by giving to the other not less
than three months’ notice in writing. Their terms of office were
also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company.

For all the current executive Directors, each of them has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for three
years, for the two non-executive Directors, each of them has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for two
years and three years, respectively, and for all the independent
non-executive Directors, each of them has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for two years. All the
Directors and the Company are required to give three months’
notice in writing to other party for termination of the service
agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors are appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
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Board meeting, Committee meeting and Annual General —ZE—XEEESSE ZESSERBRREEK
Meeting/Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016 e/ BREEIAE

The Board has held board meetings at approximately quarterly EBEZE@ANREZTERITEESESS > ASDEEHE
intervals with participation by a majority of Directors. HE e

During the year ended 31 December 2016, eight Board ARAFREBE-_ZT— R E+_A=+—HILEEHZA
meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one Remuneration [T/\REZE &% _NEZEZEE€E% - — X
Committee meeting and one Nomination Committee meeting FEEe&mN— //\Tm%é B2 -  NAPRFEE
were held. The attendance record of each Director at the Board @ &EEREES CZESEHENRERAFK
meetings, committee meetings and annual general meeting @Zﬁrggeﬁ%}zﬁjﬁur :

during the financial year are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HERR,/ ERRH

Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination

AGM/EGM meeting committee committee committee
RRBFAE/
Name of Directors RR%RIAE  EZEE3 & HMzee  R#ZEe

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Chairman of the Board ~ EEE%4(EZE8TER
and chairman of Nomination Committee, REZEEEE

appointed as executive Director on RZFE-7F-H=1H

30 January 2016) BZ{TAH1TES) 0 8/8 - - mn
Mr. Dang Zidong (chief executive officer, EOREE(1TRBH

appointed as Executive Director on R-FE-AE-ATAA

19 February 2016) BZERH ﬁ%%) 202 8/8 - - -
Mr. Liu Yuanguan (appointed on AnERE(N=E—1F

30 January 2016) —ﬁfﬁﬂgé?/f) 212 8/8 - - -
Mr. Gao Jianjun (appointed on BRERE(N-_E-—NF

30 January 2016) —A=1HEZH) 12 8/8 - - -
Mr. Leung Yuen Ho, Simon (former Chairman, 2EZ %4 (BIEE -

resigned on 19 February 2016) RZB-7 - N/A

TARRE) MR o1 - - -

Mr. Jerry Denny Strickland Jr. (resigned on~ Jerry Denny Strickland Jr. %5 &

19 February 2016) (RZF—1§ N/A

ZATAREHE) TER o1 - - -

Ms. Wong Shuk Fong (resigned on ERFRLT(N-F-~F N/A

19 February 2016) ZATHAEHE) TER 0/ - - -
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Cheng Hoo (appointed on Bhh (RZE—NEF

19 February 2016) ZATHEEZE) 12 8/8 - - -
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy (appointed on ~ EREELE(R=F—F N/A

26 September 2016) NAZ+AAEZLE) Ti@f 22 - - -
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Attendance/Number of meetings

HREER/ SRR

YA

— 4

ARRRNY 1‘\\

A

Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination
AGM/EGM meeting committee committee committee
RR@ZAg/
Name of Directors RRBHAE EZeeE ENZEE  FMzEe REZES
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITEE
Mr. Xia Zuoquan (appointed on BERRERZE—NF
19 February 2016) ZATHEEZE) i 8/8 22 11 10
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (chairman of BHEBL(FRZESERE -
Audit Committee, appointed on RZE-~E-A+NA
19 February 2016) BZHE) 2 8/8 ) 171 171
Mr. Guo Xuewen (chairman of gavkhk (GHZEEeTE
Remuneration Committee, appointed on RZE-—NEZATNA
19 February 2016) BZ(F) 17 8/8 22 11 10
Mr. Hau Chi Hung (resigned on FRELE(R_F-NF N/A 0/1 N/A N/A N/A
19 February 2016) ZATABEHE) TER TR TER TR
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome (resigned on RREE(R_F-AF N/A o1 N/A N/A N/A
19 February 2016) ZATAHEHE) TER TiEA T T
Mr. Tang Thomas Bong (resigned on BRRER=F-—E N/A 0/1 N/A N/A N/A
19 February 2016) ZATHAEF) TER TER TER TR

Note: There were no relevant meetings held before the resignation
or after the appointment of some former Directors or current
Directors, their attendances were indicated as “N/A” for the
related meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules of having at
least three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with one independent non-
executive Director, being Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony,
possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular board meetings have been given to
all Directors at least 14 days before date of meeting and
reasonable notices have been given for other board and
committee meetings.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least three days
before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached are duly kept by the
company secretary of the meetings and opened for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by the Directors.

The Company’s articles of association contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

The Chairman has held a meeting with non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of executive Directors.

Directors’ continuous training and professional development
Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Listing Rules, all the Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Up
to the date of this report, all the Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending training
course or reading relevant materials on the topics related to
corporate governance and regulations.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is summarized below:
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TERERRE

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Dang Yanbao EEEXE
Mr. Dang Zidong EARKE
Mr. Liu Yuanguan BlTERE
Mr. Gao Jianjun mEESRE
Non-executive Directors IF#MITEE
Mr. Cheng Hoo Bz A4
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy B AE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHNTEF
Mr. Xia Zuoquan Eheit
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony H#=ELT
Mr. Guo Xuewen FE KA

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The terms of reference of the above committees are
posted on the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 21 June 2012 and
has adopted written terms of reference in compliance with
the code provision C.3.3 of Corporate Governance Code for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk managment system
of the Group. The Company does not have an internal audit
function to carry out independent reviews of the adequacy
and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal controls are self-
assessed by the management and reviewed by the Board on
an on-going basis. The Audit Committee will be assisted by
the professional accounting firm engaged by the Group, which
will conduct regular internal audits and report to the Audit
Committee.
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During the period between 1 January 2016 and 19 February
2016, the members of the Audit Committee were Mr. Lai Kin,
Jerome, Mr. Hau Chi Hung and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong, all
being former independent non-executive Directors, with Mr.
Lai Kin, Jerome being the chairman of the Audit Committee
for the relevant period. Due to the change in the control of the
Company on 19 February 2016, Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome, Mr. Hau
Chi Hung and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong resigned as members
of the Audit Committee. During the period between 19
February 2016 and 31 December 2016, members of the Audit
Committee are Dr. Tyen Kan Kee, Anthony, Mr. Xia Zuoquan
and Mr. Guo Xuewen, being all independent non-executive
Directors, with Dr. Tyen Kan Kee, Anthony being the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

In 2016, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee, one
of which was with the attendance of external auditor. Among
other matters, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
and annual reports as well as result announcements before
submission to the Board, focusing on the compliance with
accounting standards, Listing Rules and the legal requirements;
the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
the external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21
June 2012 and has adopted written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1.2 of Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2016. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee include the evaluation of the
performance and the making of recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management.

During the period between 1 January 2016 and 19 February
2016, the members of the Remuneration Committee were Mr.
Hau Chi Hung, Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong,
all being former independent non-executive Directors, with
Mr. Hau Chi Hung being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee during the relevant period. Due to the change in
the control of the Company on 19 February 2016, Mr. Hau
Chi Hung, Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong
resigned as members of the Remuneration Committee. During
the period between 19 February 2016 and 31 December
2016, members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Guo
Xuewen, Mr. Xia Zuoquan and Dr. Tyen Kan Kee, Anthony,
being all independent non-executive Directors, with Mr. Guo
Xuewen being the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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In 2016, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting,
and has reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration, a significant portion of which will
be linked to corporate and individual performance, among
other matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 June 2012
and has adopted written terms of reference in compliance
with code provision A.5.2 of Corporate Governance Code
as during the year ended 31 December 2016. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review
the composition of the Board, including its structure,
size and diversity at least annually to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also responsible
to consider and recommend to the Board suitably qualified
persons to become a member of the Board, monitor the
succession planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee will also give consideration to the Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) when identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board, and the
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to develop
and review measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving these
objectives.

During the period between 1 January 2016 and 19 February
2016, the members of the Nomination Committee were Mr.
Hau Chi Hung, Mr. Lai Kin Jerome and Mr. Tang Thomas
Bong, all being former independent non-executive Directors,
with Mr. Tang Thomas Bong being the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. Due to the change in the control
of the Company on 19 February 2016, Mr. Hau Chi Hung,
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong resigned as
members of the Nomination Committee. During the period
between 19 February 2016 and 31 December 2016, members
of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Dang Yanbao, Mr. Xia
Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony and Mr. Guo Xuewen,
with a majority of independent non-executive directors as
members and the Chairman of the Board as the chairman.

In 2016, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting
and has taken consideration of the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
made recommendations on the re-election of Directors and
assessed the independence of each of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code of
the Listing Rules.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue
with the shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with the
shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on the Group’s business in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company’'s annual general meeting will be held on
Thursday, 18 May 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholders’ meeting. Save as provided under the Listing
Rules, resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company (other than purely administrative and procedural
matters) are taken by poll and poll results are posted on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
after the shareholders’ meetings.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association, extraordinary
general meetings of the Company (the “"EGM"”) shall be
convened on the requisition of any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
shareholders mainly through general meetings, including
annual general meetings, the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information is publicly available. Any such
questions shall be first directed to the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Suites 1301-1304, 13/F, Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

The number of shareholders necessary for putting forward
a proposal at a shareholders’ meeting shall be any number
of shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings at the date of the request.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Due to the change in the control of the Company, Ms. Wong
Shuk Fong resigned as the company secretary on 29 February
2016. Ms. Lo Yuen Yee was appointed as the company
secretary on the same date in place of Ms. Wong Shuk Fong.
Ms. Lo was delegated by an external service provider and
resigned on 4 October 2016, and Ms. Jiao was appointed as the
company secretary on the same date.

Ms. Jiao Yingchen is an employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. As the
company secretary, Ms. Jiao supports the Board by ensuring
board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters and facilitates induction and professional
development of the Directors. The selection, appointment
or dismissal of the company secretary is subject to the Board
approval in accordance with the articles of association. Whilst
the company secretary reports to the chief executive on
the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance
matters, all Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary. Mr. Jiao Yingchen confirmed that
she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Ms. Jiao Yingchen was appointed as company secretary
on 4 October 2016. She attended all the scheduled Board
meetings after her appointment to report matters arising from
corporate governance, risk management, statutory compliance,
accounting and finance.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE
Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’" AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of interim and annual reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affair of the Company.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The auditors to the Company acknowledges their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged its auditors, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, to prepare the statutory audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2016. The remuneration paid/payable to the auditor
of the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered FRr R it R 7%
Statutory audit services EEER R
Non-statutory audit services IEEETIR

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and investment
public. The Company updates its shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its interim and annual reports. The corporate website of the
Company (www.baofengintl.com) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During year ended 31 December 2016, the Board and the Audit
Committee conducted selective reviews of the effectiveness of
the systems of risk management and internal controls of the
Group over financial, operational and compliance controls. The
Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.
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The Company does not have an internal audit function for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Taking into account the size
and complexity of the operations of the Group, the Company
considers that the existing organisation structure and the close
supervision of the management could maintain sufficient risk
management and internal control of the Group. However,
the Board would review the need to set up an internal audit
function from time to time and may set up an internal audit
team if the need arises.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The fundamental strategy of risk management is to know the
risks existed in the Group and to perceive the change of those
risks from time to time. The major risks of the Group include
but not limited to:

Business risk

In relation to the Group’s business of Lighting Products
Business, market competition has been intensified while we
might not be able to maintain our popularity among our
customers. For the Photovoltaic Power Generation Business,
the industry is heavily regulated by the PRC government and
the timing of settling tariff adjustment would have impact on
the operation of the Group.

In view of the above challenges, the Board always has an
efficient communications system to mitigate the risks, and
would adjust our strategy accordingly. Our solutions to deal
with risks in relation to our business include improving the
quality of our products, increasing the efficiency of our
business, and establishing effective communication channels
with relevant regulatory authorities.

Financial risk

The risks associated with the Group’s financial instruments
include foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk.

Recently, RMB has depreciated againist US Dollars (“US$")
and HK dollars (“HK$"). A significant part of the revenue of
the Group is denominated in RMB while we have transactions
invoiced in US$ and bank loans are in HK$, and accordingly
we are exposed to foreign exchange risk. However, we will
continue to closely monitor the risks and take measures to
lower the risks if necessary.
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In relation to our Lighting Products Business, the Company
normally give our customers a credit period of 30-90 days.
Based on our past experience, the trade receivables not
provided for can normally be recovered and our Group has
strict control over trade receivables. For our Photovoltaic
Power Generation Business, the Ningxia branch of the State
Grid Company was the only customer for 2016. The trade
receivables include charges for electricity supply and tariff
adjustment. The charges for electricity supply would usually be
received in the following month, while the collection of tariff
adjustment receivables is expected in the normal operation
cycle, which may be more than one year. The Group’s
operation solar power plant has qualified for registration in
the Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (A BB4RERE
Bt HNE £ #BH B 8%) (the "Catalogue”), and has met all the
relevant requirements and conditions for the registration in the
Catalogue. The Directors of the Company are confident that
the Group’s operation solar power plant is able to be registered
in the Catalogue in due course and the tariff adjustment
receivables are fully recoverable upon the allocation of funds
from the PRC government. The Company will continue to
closely monitor the changes of relevant regulations, maintain
an effective communication channel with relevant regulatory
authorities and take appropriate measures to mitigate any risks
arise in this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Internal control environment

The Group has had in place an integrated framework of
internal controls which is consistent with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission’s
framework. Under the framework, the management is primarily
responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal controls while the Board and its audit committee
oversee the actions of the management and monitor the
effectiveness of the controls that have been put in place. The
framework and activities taken are illustrated below:

Framework area Activities taken

Control Environment

o Management takes a hands-on approach and is fully
committed to set the controls environment ensuring
that individuals are controls conscious

o The Group has set up relevant management team to
ensure regulations are complied with and internal
controls are carried out properly

o Management closely monitors the organization
structure and the responsibilities of individuals granting
appropriate authorities for them to handle assigned
tasks

o Performance evaluation procedures are available to
ensure individuals are competent
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Risk Assessment

Management has established clear strategic direction
and business objectives

Formal risk assessment has been conducted to identify
and analyse key risks associated with achieving the
Group's objectives which form the basis for determining
key control activities

Control Activities

Policies/procedures on key control activities are
established to ensure management directives are carried
out

Ranges of activities including approvals, authorization,
verifications, recommendations, performance reviews,
asset security and segregation of duties are identified
and implemented

Information and Communication

Pertinent information is identified, captured, processed
and reported

Access to internal and external general information is
available

Management maintains an open-door policy to allow
communication taking place both across and vertically
though the organization

Internal Control System

In respect of internal control system, procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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The following chart illustrates the internal control system and
risk management procedures adopted by the Group during the

year ended 31 December 2016:

BOARD
Exg

Establish strategic objectives

Overall risk management

Monitor the nature of the Group’s major risks
Monitor the risk management framework
Review key risks and mitigation strategies,
and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management

Ensure that the Group has established and
maintained a reasonable and effective risk
management framework

Oversee the implementation of risk
management

Assess the risks assumed by the Board to
approve the Group’s implementation of the
strategic objectives
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RISK MANAGEMENT TEAM
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The risk management team is composed of
the relevant functional departments of the
Company

Responsible for the specific work of all
stages of the overall risk management of the
Company

Develop guidelines for risk management
Prepare annual risk assessment

Conduct self-examination and inspection of
the Company’s risk management on a regular
basis
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Fully responsible for the safety of personnel and equipment at the photovoltaic power
station, and ensure safe and economic operations

Participate in all kinds of inspection and make rectification recommendations

Responsible for equipment inspection and maintenance, and give notice for examining and
processing equipment defects in a timely manner

Responsible for all acceptances after maintenance and make acceptance and rectification
recommendations

Review the receipt of items, purchase and reimbursement accounts at the power station, and
oversee the economic accounts of the inspection departments

Provide feedback to the risk management team of major deficiencies and substantive
vulnerabilities in a timely manner

HHARNBUMABMRBENLZEEEEE  BREZDEHET
2mEERE  EHBRRERER

aF R AR A - R R AR IS B TE R AR A
BESARBRORBE REBUERER

BEREWHBENYRER  BE  WEKRE  EERSHPMNEERE
K E R E IR E R R E KRB B E I RRIE R

Responsible for collection of legal risk, security risk, personnel change risk, procurement cost
risk, information system risk and conduct initial risk identification and evaluation
Responsible for the Company’s confidential management

Prepare the Company’s annual administrative expenses budget and control the
administrative expenditures

Make response proposals and report to the risk management team of the Company
Responsible for specific risk management of the department
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Organize and implement risk management assessments of the Company

Organize and oversee the implementation of control system, identify, collect and analyze
control deficiencies, make and implement recommendations for improvement

Provide feedback to the risk team of major deficiencies and substantive vulnerabilities in a
timely manner in order to monitor the operation of the internal control system

Review the Company’s annual risk assessment report, and submit to the Board for approval
Organize internal control testing, implement internal control improvement
recommendations, investigate and deal with incidents that result in significant loss or
adverse effect because of control failure
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Identify, evaluate and assess risks to achieve strategic objectives

Implement risk management procedures and internal control measures in operating and
functional areas

Conduct risk management activities during daily operations and report

Ensure that the effectiveness of the risk management framework within the scope of its
own responsibilities is reviewed at least annually and seek confirmation from the Audit
Committee
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General

The system is established for the Group’s risk management,
to develop a standardized and effective risk control system,
improve risk management and prevention, ensure the healthy
and sound operation of the Company and enhance the
management level with reference to the actual situation of the
Company.

Comprehensive risk management is a process and method
to provide a reasonable assurance for achieving the overall
objective of risk management, which means the Company
implements basic procedures of risk management in every
procedure of corporate management and during the course
of operation to nurture a sound risk management culture and
develop a sound comprehensive risk management system. The
goal of comprehensive risk management is to ensure that the
Company’s management activities are carried out healthily,
to avoid and reduce the possible losses caused by risks and to
guarantee the achievement of the strategic objectives, which
mainly including:

To control risks in line with overall objectives and within acceptable
level; to achieve timely, reliable and complete communication
of the Company’s internal and external information; to ensure
the Company’s business activities in compliance with the
provisions of national laws and regulations; to improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s operation and
management; to ensure the Company’s establishment of
management solutions for significant risks to enable it not to
suffer great losses due to catastrophic risk or human error.

Risk Management Process:

Collect initial risk management information

Each of the functional departments extensively and continuously
collects internal and external initial information related to the
Company’s risk and risk management, including historical data
and future forecasts. The initial information collected shall be
screened, refined, compared, classified and assembled to form
the Company’s initial risk management information for risk
assessment.

Risk assessment

Risk assessment includes three steps: risk identification, risk
analysis and risk evaluation. Risk assessment may be carried
out by the risk management team in conjunction with other
functional departments and, if necessary, with a qualified,
reputable and professional risk management intermediary. Risk
identification refers to identify whether there are risks in the
Company’s important business activities and its major business
processes, and if any, what the risks are. Risk analysis is a
clear definition of the identified risks and their characteristics.
It analyzes and describes the likelihood and conditions of the
risks that occur. Risk evaluation is to assess the impact of risks
on the Company’s achievement of objectives and the value of
risks.
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Develop and implement risk management strategies

The risk management team formulates the Company’s
significant risk management strategies based on risk graph
and the Company’s development strategy by determining the
risk appetite, risk tolerance and risk management effectiveness
criteria according to the different business characteristics,
selecting such appropriate risk management tools as risk
exposure, risk aversion, risk transfer, risk conversion, risk
hedging, risk compensation and risk control, clarifying the
minimum and maximum risk that the Company is exposed
to, and accordingly identifying the Company’s risk warning
line and the corresponding risk mitigation measures. The
effectiveness and reasonableness of the established significant
risk management strategies are reviewed annually to formulate
adjustment recommendations for the Company’s significant
risk management strategies of the year.

Propose and implement risk management solutions

We establish an internal control post authorization system,
which expressly stipulates the authorization object, condition,
scope and quota for any post involved in the internal control.
Any organization and individual shall not make a risk decision
beyond their authorization. We also establish an internal
control accountability system, which expressly stipulates the
responsibilities of the relevant functional departments and
project companies, posts and personnel based on the principle
of unification of rights, obligations and responsibilities.
Furthermore, we establish an internal control audit inspection
system, a major risk warning system and an important post
power balance system, which expressly stipulates separation of
incompatible duties.

Control and improvement of risk management supervision

All departments shall regularly carry out self-examination and
inspection on the risk management of the Company, and
identify defects and rectify them in a timely manner. Inspection
and examination report shall be submitted to the Company’s
risk management team in a timely manner for its review and
then submitted to the Audit Committee. The Company’s risk
management functional departments and audit departments
shall conduct annual inspection and examination of the
implementation and effectiveness of the risk management
work of all functional departments and project companies,
and issue special reports on risk management assessment and
recommendations.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations and implement various procedures to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report is prepared
by China Baofeng (International) Limited and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as the “Group” or “we"”) under the
requirements in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 (the "ESG Guide”)
of the Listing Rules.

This report includes environmental, social and governance
matters of the Group from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016 (the "Reporting Period” or the “2016 Financial Year”).
The key stakeholders which include the business departments
and the management, have all involved in the materiality
assessment, the identification of ESG policies related with the
Group and of significance, and their incorporation into this
report.
(A) ENVIRONMENTAL
A1. Emissions
The Group pays great attention to environmental
protection by committing to promoting the
development of green energy in society, so as
to minimize all emissions and wastes. We are
confident that our philosophy is conducive to
maintaining the sustainability of the community,
thus facilitating its stable and peaceful
development. For this purpose, we provide
the society with green and clean energy in
the generation method of low pollution and
low emission by developing and promoting
photovoltaic electricity to the society, in order
to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases,
including carbon dioxide. In the process of
generating photovoltaic electricity, solar
power is converted into electricity by using
semiconducting materials that exhibit the
photovoltaic effect while generating almost
zero carbon dioxide or other pollutants in such
process, neither does the process require any
cooling water.

During this Reporting Period, we have not
detected any material breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to environmental
protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC({F % A R L MR IE
IRFEX)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution({ % A & 70
B K55 253855 )), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution({ A
REAMBIRFSE67%)), the Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste
Pollution({ /R 2& A R HFI B [E B8 B2 ¥ )5 IR 5
JRVED), etc..
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A2,

A3.

Use of Resources

We are committed to technological innovation
and have devoted a lot of money and
professional talents to drive the technological
development of photovoltaic electricity, seeking
to enhance the power generation efficiency of
photovoltaic electricity system on a continuous
basis, including the enhancement of conversion
efficiency from light to electricity, the increase
of the light panel’s effective area receiving
sunlight and the maximum power point tracking
technology. In addition, we advocate the
philosophy of green office by developing
related rules and regulations, and stepping up
its efforts to electricity distribution of lighting
and air conditioners in the office area through
the establishment of usage specifications for
resources such as water and electricity and
the incorporation of energy conservation and
emission reduction into daily management, thus
reducing unnecessary resource wastes. Employee
is the most important element of our green
office, therefore, we attach great importance
to educating our employees with the concept
of saving resources, and emphasize that the
management shall set an example to integrate
environmental protection into workplace, with
the aim to develop a green workplace top down.

The Environment and Natural Resources

We have established an environmental
management system covering our offices and all
power stations. The system covers the full-cycle
of operation including environmental policies
establishment, environmental risks and factors
identification, control procedures, environmental
impact assessment as well as construction and
operation of project approved. We can identify
different environmental factors, assess their
impacts and implement control measures and
plans for them. Also, we develop compliance
management procedure for all environmental
risks, and prescribe and continuously monitor
the standards for environmental factors. Relevant
personnel shall pay regular attention to the
amendment of the regulations and update
the Group’s compliance plan and monitoring
standards in a timely manner.

A2,

A3.
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SERE

SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

We are committed to the building of standardized,
orderly, fair and effective operation system of
human resources in a bid to make full use of its
talents and their capabilities, and actively carry
out rich and colourful cultural activities to build
harmonious culture atmosphere and enhance the
staff’s sense of belonging.

We promote equal opportunity principle and
have zero tolerance and no allowance on all
discrimination. We recruit talents based on their
educational backgrounds, experiences, skills,
potentials and performance in interview, rather
than other factors such as gender, marital status
or disabled degree. Each employee joins the
Group with equal treatment. The same salary
structure applies to all men and women, and
they get promoted based on several factors,
including their speciality, working performance
and experience.

We also strive to make sure that the level of
employees’ income and benefits is competitive
in the market. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Labor Law, to
offer the pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, maternity insurance,
unemployment insurance, provident fund,
employer’s liability insurance for employees in
Mainland China. Pregnant employees are entitled
to maternity leave while male employees are
also entitled to paternity leave. In Hong Kong,
we not only provide mandatory provident fund,
labor insurance, annual leave, paid sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leaves and other
statutory welfares to our employees, but also
marriage leave, exam leave, compassionate
leave, medical benefits and other non-statutory
welfares. If employees have to work overtime,
they will be compensated with corresponding
wages.

During this Reporting Period, we have not
detected any material breach of the laws and
regulations relating to human resources.

(B)

o=
B1.

&R
BABORNBERL - BF ~ Q/LE -
BRANEREERE - ﬂﬁk%
HA 7TEHER YEBARE
XAEES LM%L?D%E’JX{KWI
HEBETHRER -

BAREFERS  H—UERTA
WHXTKELF T:l/\_,\ e J_E DE%H‘E
BRMASRESRE S5 - H

i~ BEREARBEREAT - 2t
et Rl - WIRRR RBRIZESF R
?%XE%%ZW —ﬁMAEI
WET  #A = ¥#m ° Fff
S B THH R %tﬂm B
EREZFATRBK  YAREETH
B -THEXRR ERSFAXEL/E
& FHHY KR -

B APITRE PER B T WA R 48 Fi 7K
$Em%iﬂ% HF ) o AFIEAS &
STCEEE) FHRBERER - RAM

BETRHEERE  BERR ITH
R - EERR - KERR - EEAQ
e EXEMER RHERR S

ETRMHEER RER - £&E -
BRTRETRHERES  STHRER

FRR - BFHRE - Eﬁ\%&ﬁ%
EERAZIN - VRSB TR
- EERK BB URE fhﬂ“

IEERM - BT H MY
EMTERHIE -

ek E!

RAREHEEA - EEWAREZEIREM
ﬁAﬂéﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁ&ﬁ%ék
BEREE

7

i)

[#0



B2.

Health and Safety

We conscientiously implement our national laws
and regulations as well as the standards and
specifications in relation to work safety and
occupational health, and to ensure employees’
health and occupational safety. We monitor
the occupational disease hazards every year,
reasonably evaluate the impact that works and
environment has on employee’s personal health,
and reinforce the emergency management and
prevention measures for work safety through
a series of safety measures, such as safety
supervision, regular and irregular inspections,
safety evaluation and hazard identification.
Employees in charge of works with high risks
must wear safety protections while working and
accept trainings on safety and working skills on a
regular basis, in order to minimize the possibility
of accidents at source.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to the health and safety in workplace.
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B3.

B4.

Development and Training

We actively help employees in their development
to enable them to deliver personal value within
the Group while making contribution to our
growth and development. We have produced
well-established training systems, regularly set
a training goal and provide employees with
relevant trainings to enhance their working
knowledge and skills. In addition, employees
are encouraged to and accept assistance to
identify their personal ambition and draw up a
career development plan with their immediate
superiors.

To this end, the Group continues to strengthen
team building of skilled personnel and implement
title appraisal for professional technicians to
facilitate employees’ growth in a way more
suitable for themselves. We also carry out in-
depth trainings for leaders, professionals, skilled
personnel and collective introduction trainings
for newly joined college graduates under the
overall requirements of “by classification, multi-
layer and on demand”, while enhancing training
methods and adopting innovative training means
to improve training efficiency. Moreover, skills
competition is also held on a regular basis to
show their talent and boost the cross-learning
atmosphere among employees.

Labor Standards

We strictly comply with national laws and
regulations, including the Labor Law and the
Labor Contract Law and lawfully enter into labor
contract with employees. Employment of child
labor and forced labor is completely eradicated.
All employees are encouraged to report to the
Group at any time for any non-compliance
incidents such as employment of child labor and
forced labor during the course of our recruitment
and operation.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to avoiding child or forced labor.
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B5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group persists in developing fair and
impartial working relationships with suppliers.
The purchases of all critical materials are
subject to an administrative regime that
separates purchase, delivery inspection and
acceptance, and supervision, in a bid to eliminate
corruption at source. Contracts and agreements
are performed in stringent compliance with
contractual requirements and all suppliers
are treated with respect in an equal manner.
Meanwhile, we also attach great importance to
the reflection of problems on suppliers and will
carry out sustained review on their performance
in fulfilling the contacts. Any persons related
are encouraged to report any abnormalities or
comments to purchasing management center in
real time.

While fulfilling our own social responsibility,
we also incorporate concepts and requirements
of social responsibility in the management
of suppliers. A stringent and standardized
system for the selection and management
of suppliers has been formulated, in a bid to
safeguard a healthy and orderly marketplace.
For environment, the suppliers are required
to obtain, maintain and regularly update all
environmental permits and licenses, and comply
with all operational and information disclosure
requirements in respect of environment. For
equipment upgrade and production processes
enhancement, the suppliers are also required
to take steps to economize on the use of
natural resources, promote waste recovery and
recycling as well as properly manage and duly
deal with environmental hazards. In addition,
all the suppliers are required to adopt proper
measures to minimize safety risks in workplace,
including the formulation of emergency plan, the
provision of sufficient personal protection items,
etc.. Labor practices criteria and performance
of suppliers would be one of our important
considerations in the selection of suppliers. We
have zero tolerance for suppliers’ environmental
and labor malpractices, and will surely avoid
or cease cooperation with such suppliers once
found.
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B6.

Product Responsibility

Stabilize Power Supply

We are dedicated to the building of a stable
and reliable power generation system to
safeguard safer, cleaner, more economical
and more sustainable electric power supply.
Therefore, we regard safe production as
the prerequisite for stable power supply
and sustainable development for us in firm
adherence to the safety philosophy which
maintains that “no risks are uncontrollable, no
breaches are unpreventable and no accidents
are unavoidable” and the safety production
directives of “safety as priority, prevention rather
than cure, and comprehensive management”.
Also, we improve the system by driving
the development of the safety, health and
environment (SHE) management system on
all fronts and revising and compiling the SHE
Management Regulations.

To ensure stable power supply, we have formulated
various facility management regulations and
set out plans for overhauls and technological
upgrades in a bid to complete facility management
and secure stable operation of the generating
units, as well as adopting specific investigation to
enhance facility repair and maintenance, eliminate
any hazards in the power generating units and
enhance reliability of power generating units in a
bid to deal with the challenges in the peak power
consumption periods during the summer and
winter seasons.

Customer Service

We are pleased to communicate with customer
to understand their requirements and comments
on our products. Our customer service team
strives to provide customer with professional
product consultation and after-sale services, with
multiple communication channels available for
customer to offer their comments. In case of
any dissatisfaction with our products or services
from customer, we have set up measures to deal
with customer’s comments and timely conducted
rectification in regard thereof, so as to gain
customer satisfaction with our products.
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B7.

We have developed principle of confidentiality
in respect of customer’s personal information
to focus on the protection of customer’s
privacy. In no case will we disclose customer’s
personal information to a third party without
the customer’s consent. All information will be
protected in safe physical method or by security
settings in computer to avoid theft.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to products and services quality.

Anti-corruption

As an enterprise citizen, the Group not only
establishes internal codes of conduct of the staff,
but also develops various interior mechanisms,
with the aim to heighten the awareness of
preventing improper conducts. We also offer
processing methods in that regard to secure
the legality and compliance of our operation.
Our internal codes of conduct mainly consist of
“Commandment for Integrity Culture (=301t
A{E)", “Code of Conduct of the Staff (E L1745
SFAN” and “Security Management Standard (%
2EEIZA)" in which, all the staff are required
to abide by the principle of compliance. We
insist on maintaining a high level of corporate
governance. To secure high transparency, the
terms of reference of the board committee
have been uploaded to the Group’s website for
public information. Moreover, we have actively
prevented and combated corruption. By making
a corruption risk assessment once a year and
delivering the Group’s anti-corruption policies
and procedures through thematic training and
the issue of press release, we clear the Group's
serious stance on corrupt conducts, improve
the staff’s vigilance, alertness and processing
capability towards such conducts and regulate
individual behaviour.

During the Reporting Period, we have not
detected any breach of the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption.
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B8.

SERE

Community Investment

Community development is closely related to our
operations. We could never achieve a sustainable
development without our communities. Through
recruiting local manpower, employee volunteer
services and donations, we have grown together
with the communities where our power
plants and offices locate. We cooperated with
local governments to actively join in poverty
alleviation through photovoltaic energy.
Our solar power plants are mainly located in
relatively undeveloped areas in Northwestern
and Southwestern China. By constructing solar
power plants there, local residents could get
both land compensation and clean electricity.
Villagers who could not get access to electricity
before are using lights, TV, fridges and other
electrical appliances to improve their living
standards. We prefer to recruit local employees
under same conditions, thereby providing a
large number of job opportunities for the local
region. In addition, we encouraged our staff
to participate in philanthropy and volunteer
activities to bring warmth to the disadvantaged
groups in the society. Beyond that, we are also
pleased to make a donation to the communities
and charitable institutions in need to provide
assistance to people in need in society.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company has been changed from “Mastercraft
International Holdings Limited SMZEBEERIZR AR AF" to
“China Baofeng (International) Limited FEEY (EE)
BRAF]" with effect from 12 May 2016 with the approval
of, among others, the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 10 May 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with
limited liability with its registered office in the Cayman Islands.
The address of the headquarters and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company has been changed to Suites
1301-1304, 13/F, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong with effect from 26 September 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as discussed in
this report, there were no significant changes in nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year. Discussion
and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are set out on pages 6 to 16 of this
annual report. This discussion form part of the report of the
directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 68 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR 2017

AGM

Book close dates for 2017
AGM (both days inclusive)

Monday, 15 May 2017 to
Thursday, 18 May 2017

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents with the
Company's share registrar

Name and address of the
Company’s share registrar

Friday, 12 May 2017,
4:00 p.m.

Union Registrars Limited,
Suites 3301-4, 33/F,
Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
of turnover attribute to the Group's largest and the five largest
customers was approximately 32.5% and 85.2% (2015:
39.8% and 82.8%) of the total value of the Group’s turnover,
respectively. The Group’s purchases from the largest and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 49.7% and
87.5% (2015: 47.5% and 81.7%) of the total value of the
Group’s purchases, respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in major
customers or suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition
of continuing connected transaction in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are fully exempted from annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company would like to draw the shareholders’ attention to
the following additional disclosure.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group paid
rents in an aggregate amount of HK$2,451,000 under a lease
agreement (the "MCP Investment Transactions”) to MCP
Investments, LLC (“MCP Investment”), an associate of Mr. Jerry
Strickland (“Mr. Strickland”), a former controlling shareholder
and former executive Director. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group paid commission in an aggregate
amount of HK$1,423,678 under a service agreement (the
“Todd Miller Transactions”) to Todd Miller Inc. (“Todd Miller”),
an associate of Mr. Strickland.
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As a result of the completion of the acquisition of controlling
equity interests in the Company by Fung Teng on 19 February
2016 and the resignation of Mr. Strickland as a Director on
the same date, MCP Investment and Todd Miller ceased to be
related parties of the Company while they remain as connected
persons of the Company until 12 months after Mr. Strickland’s
resignation. Accordingly, the MCP Investment Transactions and
the Todd Miller Transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016. As the respective transaction amounts under the MCP
Investment Transactions and the Todd Miller Transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2016 are less than HK$3,000,000
and all the applicable ratios in this regard are less than 5%, the
MCP Investment Transactions and the Todd Miller Transactions
are fully exempted from annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 18 February 2016, being 12 months after Mr. Strickland’s
resignation as Director of the Company, MCP Investment and
Todd Miller ceased to be connected persons of the Company
and accordingly, the MCP Investment Transactions and the
Todd Miller Transactions no longer constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company thereafter.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding
of the shares of the Company.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 70.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Cayman Islands’
legislation, amounted to approximately HK$284,265,000
(2015: HK$50,068,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 128 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACT

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement at each
annual general meeting by rotation or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

For all the former executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors who served their terms of office during
the year ended 31 December 2016, they have entered service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years and two
years commencing from their respective appointment dates
and should continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either parties by giving to the other not less than three months’
notice in writing. Their terms of office were also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

For all the current executive Directors, each of them has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for three
years. For the two non-executive Directors, each of them has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for two
years and three years, respectively. For all the independent
non-executive Directors, each of them has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for two years, All the
Directors and the Company are required to give three months’
notice in writing to other party for termination of the service
agreement/appointment letter. All the Directors are appointed
for a specific term and subject to re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Xia Zuoquan, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony and
Mr. Guo Xuewen respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Please refer to pages 2 to 3 of this report for the list of
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2016
and as at the date of this report. Biographical details of the
current Directors of the Company are set out on pages 17 to 20
of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPETING INTEREST

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the
controlling shareholder and their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest, which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")), as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares

RERGZHE

Percentage of
the Company’s

issued
Capacity and Number of share capital
nature of interest shares HARATERIT
SO RERMEE 8 E RAKNE 5L
(note 1)
(BF&ET)
Mr. Dang Yanbao (note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 360,000,000 (L) 63.41%
EEELEE(WE2) RZIEHEE R E RS
Interest of controlled corporation 252,600,000 (S) 44 .50%
REIEHEE R E =S
Notes: MEE -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in the interest in the 1. [LIIEARARIRARER 2 TR < [SHEAR AR

share capital of the Company. The letter “S” denotes a short
position in the interest in the share capital of the Company.

2. Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, is deemed to be interested in 360,000,000
Shares held by Fung Teng Enterprises Limited under SFO,
among which 252,600,000 Shares were pledged in favour
of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited as a security for a
revolving credit facility up to a maximum aggregate amount
of HK$250,000,000 provided to the Company by Bank of
Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had registered any other interest or
short position in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
or to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
were not aware of any other person who had, or was deemed
to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group or options in respect of such share
capital.

Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity and

nature of interest

B RESEME

Beneficial owner

Fung Teng Enterprises Limited (note 2)  Benefic
BEmEAA

B ER AR (ME2)

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the interest in the
share capital of the Company. The letter “S” denotes a short
position in the interest in the share capital of the Company.

2. Fung Teng Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in BVI
with limited liability, is an investment holding company with
the entire issued share capital held by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, as at 31
December 2016.

3. Fung Teng Enterprises Limited beneficially owned 360,000,000
Shares in the Company, among which 252,600,000 Shares
were pledged in favour of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong)
Limited as a security for a revolving credit facility up to a
maximum aggregate amount of HK$250,000,000 provided to
the Company by Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited.
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(Note 3)
(FF5E3)

252,600,000 (S) 44 .50%
(Note 3)
(BF5E3)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution of the Company
passed on 21 June 2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants, and will expire
on 21 June 2022. The scheme was adjusted on 27 July 2015.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to any of the
following participants:

(a) any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or
any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

() a company beneficially owned by any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 8.46% of the
Shares in issue, without prior approval from the Company’'s
shareholders.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and may be granted to any
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue, without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders.

Any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive Director or their
respective associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1%
of the Share in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Any offer made to a participant for an option must be taken
up within five business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 (or such other nominal sum as the Board
may determine). Options may be exercised at any time during a
period as the Board may determine, which shall not more than
ten years from the date of grant of the options.
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The exercise price for any Share under the Scheme is determined
by the Board, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of a Share on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of a Share for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

No share option has been granted since the Scheme has been
adopted. As at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and
2014, there are no outstanding share options issued under the
Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME", no equity-linked agreement were entered into
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 22 to 41 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public
float of 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm
or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company during the
year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$36,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of all the
former and existing directors of the Company is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year of 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As
a responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance with
the applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge
of the Directors of the Company, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and
shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its
key stakeholders.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2016

As at the date of this report, the Group has no material events
after the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
China Baofeng (International) Limited

Dang Yanbao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of China Baofeng (International) Limited
(Formerly known as Mastercraft International Holdings Limited)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Baofeng (International) Limited (formerly known as
Mastercraft International Holdings Limited, the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
set out on pages 68 to 127, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B AN S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

RREEER

BREFTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBANIEEZRARESNSER

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power generation

KRB EEEH R Y25 R

We identified the revenue recognition on tariff adjustment
for photovoltaic power generation as a key audit matter
due to the critical management judgement involved in
determining whether the Group’s operating solar power
plant has qualified for, and has met all the requirements
and conditions as required for the registration in the
Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (] B4 REREE
M ANE & % B) B 8%) (the Catalogue ).

BARENNEEEEABN WA ERSAREFSFH A

BET HREESETOABEEEHMELCSTA AR
ABRLEREEMMESHBBER(BE]NE2HELEKX

RAGIE S R EXNEIEEHH -

The accounting policies in relation to revenue recognition
on tariff adjustment is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The tariff adjustment is recognised at
its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
tariff adjustment will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions, if any.

EHAEERBWE ﬁw G BRI T & W B R M ot
3. ERABRASE NS BEAED BEEEEED
WWH#@M@WM&T EEABRAATEER -

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice issued in August 2013
(the “New Tariff Notice”) by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), approvals for the registration in the Catalogue on
a project-by-project basis are required for the settlement of
the tariff adjustment.

RIEFEARK ﬁlU$ﬁDl%?@ﬂﬁ$§E@ﬂ_v
—ZF )\ ARG EEMNBN(HEEMRLBA])
HEERHBARABELERBELTN B SO -

Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic
power generation of RMB126,443,000 (equivalent to
HK$147,714,000) from the state grid company in the PRC
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016
in which the operating solar power plant is still pending
registration in the Catalogue. Based on the management
assessment as set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s operating solar power plant
has qualified for registration in the Catalogue, and has
met all the relevant requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Catalogue.

RBE_T—A"F+t_A-+—AUFEERTHHXEH
"T;‘ﬂﬂ%”‘”ﬁ{ﬁm*&% )\Eﬁ¥126443ooomifﬁ”‘ﬁA
147,714,000%87C) - Hf BEEEBELEERMNAGREESEHR
mﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ @ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%F
ffEt . BEEBEEETNABGREEEHRETaERNEHE
ﬁ'ﬁaﬁiﬂaﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi&wﬁ

D
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s revenue
recognition on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
generation included:

AN SEEHRARNEEEE

B U AR FERR - A

MR IR B4

Obtaining an understanding of the policies and
regulations set by PRC government authorities
on tariff adjustment for photovoltaic power
eneration;
T BT RE AR EEEEARHENR
RER

Obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s PRC
legal advisor in relation to the assessment that the
Group's solar power plant currently in operation
has met all the relevant requirements and
conditions for the registration in the Catalogue
and the entitlement of the tariff adjustment when
the electricity was delivered on grid; and

JEER Em@$l£¢@ﬁv BEEEBRKZE

R A B R B B X AR AN E
SE RO ABERE AR EEEAR

BESHBNFEZIEZRER &

Discussing with management and the Group’s
PRC legal advisor to assess if there are any factors
and changes in government policies which would
affect the registration in the Catalogue by the
Group

HEEER E%I¢l£¢@ﬁﬁ AR
ﬁE1Tkﬁﬁ A &= K & kﬁT%%

=5
2 BEEERBHERT-



Annual Report 2016 —Z—XFFH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

REEITER

Valuation of trade receivables

B EWFHEGE

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter as the allowance for doubtful debts is based
on estimation and judgement involved by management in
identifying the doubtful debts and estimating the allowance
for doubtful debts.

BARTEZERYGIAGERBRETFE  ARRERE
ﬁ)ﬁ%gﬁq\%ﬁEﬁﬁi%?&ﬂﬁ&%%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ&%ﬁ

R -

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies the doubtful debts
based on aging analysis and the subsequent settlements of
the trade receivables.

WG M mEMTAmE  EREENE HREFIENER
BRoNMREBRERERTERZR -

In determining the allowance for doubtful debts, management
considers the customers’ credit history, settlement patterns
and subsequent settlements of the trade receivables.
EEERBRERS EEEQEZREEFPNGAEL &5
BARE GRBAHIENREEE -

The Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$96,083,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$990,000).
EEERN - R"FT+_A=+—"HHNEZERFEAE
96,083,0007% 7T (1 R I ARAEH#S1£ /990,000 7T) °

BB RS

BRETSHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAREEZBRETER

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:
AREEEHESERFIERENTE  RMNETE
FrefE -

Obtaining an understanding of the Group's
allowance policy on trade receivables and
determination of credit ratings and limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures for
overdue debts;

i ESEEESRWFARBRERET AN
Ei’%ﬁ‘ﬂ%%%ﬁ&&ﬁﬁ%&i CEEEHREMEERE
T

Discussing with management and assessing the
reasonableness on allowance for doubtful debts,
with reference to customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and
aging analysis of the trade receivables;
2EXPNEARSL  #EERX  BZRUFE
WREEE MREK DI - BERRE I ER
ERERNSIEMT

Testing the accuracy of aging analysis of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the sales
invoices; and

¥R H 6 T R ORI 5L E 5 IR KGR IR iR 0 AT K
R R

Testing the subsequent settlements, on a sample
basis, to the bank-in slips or remittance advices.

HRRITRKESEREMZAARENGE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B AN S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

64

Hih &R
EAREBHEMENFRER - R ENDERA
BT 3R 5 K 3 P60 A B AT 2 25 36 A 0 1 e £ 56
IR ER -

BAEEAVBRROBETREEMER - AR
THEMEBERIELEMZARRE

MRAHFEMHRERONEFTMS - ROANETEH
BEMER - WAKZBEMEN R T RS MR
REBPINBEPAAFEERNS - KIAEMTT AT
EEAHREBM - WEEREMNAAETERMSH
i REMERFEERERRL - RABERS
ZEE - WAL EL T HAB®RS -

ESRERZESHGAMBRRNEL

ERREFRERBEBESIMASBMHET BRI
HELER  FB(RAEIDOBEBERERRALEE
MAFIEREAMH MK - MIESET RLAN
BRANIEZEMNS - SECESMBRENERIF
BN AFF SRR MG B E A RERA -

RREHGAMBHREAE EFA5NE SESERE
rEmgen  BRENER FEBAELENSER
ARRARBEEEEETEHNE  BIFESAR
B BEEENELKEIBREPLEEMMERER
AL e

ERZECREEE SSEENYBHmERFRF -



Annual Report 2016 —Z—XFFH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BB RS

REMBESRESMBRRNEE
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B B AN S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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China Baofeng (International) Limited FEZE L (HE)ERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEaRAEMEEKGA R
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILER

2016 2015

—E—ARF —T-AF

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000

By & THxT FHTT

Revenue g 5 611,057 389,740

Cost of sales B E R (392,677) (312,547)

Gross profit ESA 218,380 77,193

Other income H AU A 6 16,257 195

Selling expenses HEMX (27,054) (23,696)

Administrative expenses THAX (52,500) (28,575)

Research and development expenses R (6,384) (5,955)

Finance costs MBER 7 (2,725) -

Profit before taxation B BT % 8 145,974 19,162

Income tax expense FrSfiAx 9 (4,429) (4,730)

Profit for the year FERF 141,545 14,432
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEAEM2E (AW

for the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently A& RJEE#H I Z 18
to profit or loss: mZHE -

Exchange differences arising on BERINEKER =R

translating foreign operations (28,573) 662

Total comprehensive income for the year  FE2E 54858 112,972 15,094

HK27.29 cents HK3.01 cents

Earnings per share — Basic FRR AR —HEAK 12 27.297&4l 3.0l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Rental deposit

Deferred tax asset

Intangible asset

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Prepaid rental expenses for photovoltaic

facilities
Tax recoverable
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provision

Amount due to a related company
Tax payable

Bank borrowing

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Non-current Liability
Deferred tax liability

Net assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

an (=] ,jﬁﬁﬂjﬁ/‘ﬂl%‘%

At 31 December 2016
RZE—R"F+ZHA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT TET

EREBEE
VI - R LR 13 68,570 4,890
HeERE 2,013 -
BRI EE 14 978 1,175
EEE 15 659 756
72,220 6,821

REEE
FE 16 21,615 31,089
B 5 N E R ERIE 17 312,669 84,391

FRBIEEMNEEEA

55,136 -
Al 3R B 75 18 - 322
RITHEB NIE S 18 316,345 19,992
705,765 135,794

REEE
B 5N E MR FRIE 19 64,320 52,414
= 20 7,145 4,476
JETRAE R B FIA 28(a) = 238
JE TR 75 -
RITIEK 21 250,000 -
321,540 57,128
REBEEFE 384,225 78,666
EEHAERARBERS 456,445 85,487

ERBER
EERIEEE 14 88 3
EEFE 456,357 85,484

BARE#E
& As 22 5,677 4,800
1 450,680 80,684
BREREZS 456,357 85,484

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 72 were  F68B E72BEMNGAMBREAR—_E—+F=H—=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  + 7 B 4 & =& #t ) & 150 T3
29 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dang Yanbao
BEZ"E

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HITEF

Dang Zidong
BBER
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

==\ 7 4
1: =Y

n‘/-ﬁ

2Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE—

—R"E+ZA=1+—HILFE

Share
capital

BA
HK$'000

TER

Share
premium

BE
HK$'000
7

Special
reserve

BHIGE fife
HK$000

(Note a)

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EEBH

Translation
reserve

E ki
HK$'000 HK$'000

THL AL
(Note b)

%/ETE

Retained
profits

REXA
HK$'000
a7

Total

st
HK$'000

= (PizEa) (PizED)
? \Maza 1%
— £1 January 2015 W-E-RE-F-R 4800 32,523 (1) - (132) 49,040 86,230
—
— B
— | )
ﬁ Profit for the year EERF - - - - - 14,432 14,432
;‘J—-‘: Exchange difference arising FRABSENEERANZE
— on translation of foreign BHELNELZR
ﬁ operations and other
é —] comprehensive income
f for the year - - - - 662 - 662
Total comprehensive income N2 ENFEE
for the year - - - - 662 14,432 15,094
2014 final dividend paid “E-NERRENKERS - - - - - (15,840) (15,840)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+-A=1-H
1 January 2016 k= E—-HA-H 4,800 32,523 (1) - 530 47,632 85,484
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - 141545 141,545
Exchange difference arising FRABENEB AN EE
on translation of foreign AXEANERZE
operations and other
comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - (28,573) - (28,573)
Total comprehensive income ERPEKGEE
for the year - - - - (28,573) 41,545 112,972
Issue of ordinary shares BTLAER 877 259,842 - - - - 260,719
Share issue expenses BT ER - (2,818) - - - - (2,818)
Transfer fEbe - - - 16,949 - (16,949) -
At 31 December 2016 RE—RF+-F=1—H 5,677 289,547 (1) 16,949 (28,043) 172,228 456,357
Notes: FfzE -
a. Special reserve represents the reserve arising from group  a. EREEERN - E——FE®TEEEHEL 2 F
reorganisation in 2012. &
b. In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for foreign b, REPEINEREC BB EEER  PEMNBR

EREREANDERICEMBES R
FNEA 755 35 TE A B YA TE B 76 S R R R MY R TR R
MZ10%BRBEERBEE

investment enterprises in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation reported
in their statutory financial statements prepared under relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC to the statutory surplus
reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.r\/\iﬁaﬁl)lbi%%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
—EB—REF —ET-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation i 75 BT V48 ) 145,974 19,162
Adjustments for: FLATIEEB (EL A%
Allowance for doubtful debts REBAREMRE 990 -
Allowance for obsolete and B RS B
slow-moving inventories 244 353
Amortisation of intangible asset A 97 97
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREEITE
equipment 2,580 1,622
Gain on disposal of property, LEMZE - BE REE W
plant and equipment (120) -
Finance costs B 7% 8 R 2,725 -
Interest income FLEWA (93) (51)
Operating cash flows before movements BEECEPRIKERERE
in working capital 152,397 21,183
Increase in prepayment of rental expenses Y1k S TE < 18 & & F 10
for photovoltaic facilities (55,136) -
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA L) 9,230 (1,224)
Increase in rental deposit and trade and HERERE SR EMERFRIBIE M
other receivables (200,812) (10,154)
Increase in trade and other payables Z 5 K HAb JE A FIB AN 1,743 14,273
Increase (decrease) in provision B ANGRAD) 2,669 (814)
Increase in amount due to a related JE A< B 3 R BRI S 0
company = 78
Cash generated (used in) from operations  4&:@Fr15(FrA)ES (89,909) 23,342
Income tax paid in Hong Kong EREBEH (4,410) (5,700)
Income tax refunded (paid) in REN(BEM)HEMEEEERATEH
other jurisdictions 660 (2,354)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REXB (A BREFEE
ACTIVITIES (93,659) 15,288
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEEYZE - B=E MR iE (55,884) (1,241)
Advance to a photovoltaic facilities provider #5 )¢ 1K 2% e FE P 4 7% (44,643) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HEWME - ME MR IEMEHIE
and equipment 120 -
Interest received EHH B 93 51
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®BREZEFTARESFE (100,314) (1,190)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN L E=
ERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans raised
Proceeds from issue of shares
Repayment of bank loans
Share issue expenses

Interest paid

Dividend paid to shareholders

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER
— represented by bank balances and cash

72

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT THEIT
mEEE
FIZIRITER 380,000 -
BT D T8 5108 260,719 -
EEIRITER (130,000) -
fEnEE1TE A (2,818) -
BAFE (4,760) -
BEE YRR - (15,840)
METEREB(FARESRE
503,141 (15,840)
ReRBESSEYIEMCRD ) FHE
309,168 (1,742)
R—A—BRBESRESZEY
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GENERAL

China Baofeng (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August
2011 and its shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since
20 July 2012. On 5 August 2015, the listing of the
shares of the Company has been transferred from
the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
The address of the registered office of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. Prior to 19
February 2016, SYH Investments Limited and Mr. Jerry
Strickland, an executive director of the Company until
19 February 2016, each held 37.5% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company (75% in aggregate). SYH
Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and is wholly-owned by Mr. Leung
Yuen Ho, Simon, an executive director who was also
the chief executive of the Company until 19 February
2016. On 19 February 2016, SYH Investments Limited
and Mr. Jerry Strickland disposed of their aggregate
360,000,000 shares, representing 75% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company, to Fung Teng
Enterprises Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Dang
Yanbao, the Chairman and executive Director of the
Company. The address of principal place of business in
Hong Kong is 1301-1304, 13/F., Two Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are photovoltaic power
generation and design and supply chain of lightings and
home furnishing products. Particulars of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 29.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is different from
the functional currency of the Company, United States
dollars ("US$"), as the directors of the Company
consider that HK$ is more appropriate as the Company’s
shares are listed in Hong Kong.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of

HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations
Amendments to Disclosure initiative
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of acceptable
HKAS 16 and methods of depreciation and
HKAS 38 amortisation
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instrument’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to Classification and measurement

HKFRS 2 of share-based payment

transactions’
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture3

Amendments to Disclosure initiative*

HKAS 7

Amendments to Recognition of deferred tax assets
HKAS 12 for unrealised losses*

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 relevant to the Group are
described as follows:

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact
on the measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The
expected credit loss model may result in early provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as
licensing application guidance.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the Directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows, respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$28,110,000 as
disclosed in note 25. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of financial effect until the Directors of the Company
complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the
consolidated financial position of the Group.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

FE R HTR] RASERI BB M B HREER
((ERMBREER ] @)

ERMBREENE 16X (HE]D ()
HARAGHRETEER  ERMBRSE
ERE16RABRREE B LERF17HRA
HEANGTEK  YESRELHEABE
ENERKEEHEIRERE -

UESh - BB A B E 165 N E KB
Z B o

RZB—RE+_A=+—0 KEBETLA
Bis s e A8 A ¥E 528,110,000 7t (40 f
I25FTHEE) c VIR R RETHR
AEEUBRELEFIGR THNEHEETE -
it NEBEBHArEZSHEmRAERE
BEENIAEAE KRIFCEATEVBERS
EHF16GRBERAREENSHEE - It
N FERFAR T A E R EXFTilE £
2 RBEEZ( - R > EARBEETK
FEMEM A BEMBEEZAEMGRT
TYIERR -

ARBEEBEHEAEMMFIEZEY B RE
BRI RBEBMBERELEN ZET AT EE AN
SENREREEMNUENEATE

79



China Baofeng (International) Limited FEIZE 2 (EK)ERLQT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received. Revenue is reduced for
estimated customer returns, trade discounts and other
similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

Revenue arising from the photovoltaic power generation
is recognised in the accounting period when electricity is
generated and transmitted. Tariff adjustment represents
subsidy received and receivable from the government
authorities in respect of the Group’s photovoltaic power
generation business. Tariff adjustment is recognised at
its fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the additional tariff will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions, if any.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Solar power plant in the course of construction for
generation of electricity income is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include costs of
solar modules, permits applied, professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs and other costs
capitalised in the course of construction. Completed
solar power plant, being solar power plant held for
the generation of electricity income, is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and the
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the current of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group'’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualified assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
plans, state-managed retirement benefits scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;
o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Provision for sales discount and defective claims
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations
under the relevant sale of goods legislation are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products,
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the Group’s obligation, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of time value of money is material).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

3.

FTESEE#)

MBETA
MEBMERK S TAAKNRXWETHNT Al
KRR BMRART RV BEERT KA

&

MBEERMBRENTRAFEFE -
WERBTHBEERMBEE  RUTHE
REMAMBEEXMBRE(WER)HA
FEXBMFEEXMBRE(WER) MR
FEPME -

HHEE
AEBWMBEET D BRERRERR
H o D BBURN I B EE 1) RS T
BB

BEERAEA

BERF SR EWBEENBEKARR
BERBEDENBWANTTE - BEREMETS
#5875 B EE WY TR AT SR RS (10E ) 808 HA
AEFTARRREEN R & (B EERERF X5
EBOZHEENUCRERRHE RS
7R B B (B S 3T i ) SERE R IR B X)) T HERR
RS RO BREDFE RO R -

BT AN S WARERF S EEHER -

Bk & FE MR IR

B RN B YR IR Y I 55 BR T 5 SR B A [E
EHFESBNRNIEITEMEEE - 17
FHERR - ERMERFIE(BEE S RUGK
/N B A R IR MRTT ek IR 2 ) 19 A E
BR A EOA - R 5H AR AR (1] 2 38Rl R (B &
TEE)\,)EE(E%%ﬁﬁ?i*ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@@ﬁ
KR e

MBEERE

RBEEHKR  ZRAEMBEERTARE
PR - EATHEBRBRIUBEENMGTR
RReERERRNIERZVBEEREE
M—IAXZEEHMXBFER - BIEZH
BEERRRE -



Annual Report 2016 —Z—XFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowing and amount due to a related company
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgement, estimates
and assumption about the carrying amounts of assets
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future period.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

3.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustment for
photovoltaic power generation

Tariff adjustment represents subsidy received and
receivable from the government authorities in respect
of the Group's photovoltaic power generation business.
Tariff subsidy is recognised at its fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the additional tariff will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions, if any.

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice issued in August 2013
(the”New Tariff Notice”) by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of
China (the”PRC"), approvals for the registration in the
Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (R]FB4EEEIR
EEWNINE S B E ) (the “Catalogue”) on a project-
by-project basis are required for the settlement of the
tariff adjustment.

Revenue from tariff adjustment for photovoltaic
power generation of RMB126,443,000 (equivalent to
HK$147,714,000) from the state grid company in the PRC
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016
in which the operating solar power plant is still pending
registration in the Catalogue.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
revenue recognition of tariff adjustment is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account
the opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisor,
that the Group's operating solar power plant has
qualified for registration in the Catalogue and has
met all the relevant requirements and conditions for
the registration in the Catalogue. The Directors of the
Company are confident that the Group's operating solar
power plant is able to be registered in the Catalogue
in due course and the tariff adjustment receivables are
fully recoverable upon the allocation of funds from the
PRC government.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Valuation of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based
on assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables.
The management identifies the doubtful debts based
on aging analysis and the subsequent settlements
of the trade receivables. In determining whether an
allowance for doubtful debts is required, the Group
takes into consideration of the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns and subsequent settlements of
the trade receivables. Where the expectation of the
recoverability of trade receivables is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of trade receivables and allowance for
doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$96,083,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$990,000) (2015:
carrying amount of HK$83,455,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of nil)).

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for use in
operation. Estimation of net realisable value is less than
the carrying amount, impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
is approximately HK$21,615,000 (net of allowance for
slowing moving inventories of HK$838,000) (2015:
HK$31,089,000 (net of allowance for slow-moving
inventories of HK$594,000)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Useful lives and impairment assessment of property,
plant, and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives, the residual values, and the depreciation method
in determining the related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. In addition, management
assesses impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset may not be recoverable. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
expected to be shorter than expected, or will write off
or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
HK$68,570,000 (2015: HK$4,890,000).

Estimated provision of sales discount and defective
claims

For the provision of sales discounts and defective claims,
there are no fixed terms of sale discounts and defective
claims entered with customers. The amount is based
on the management’s estimation by reference to the
historical experience on sales discounts and defective
claims from customers. Management’s estimates
and assumptions are reviewed periodically and are
adjusted if necessary. Should any of the estimates and
assumptions change, it may lead to a change in the
provision of sales discounts and defective claims. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of provision
of sales discounts and defective claims is HK$7,145,000
(2015: HK$4,476,000).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

Revenue from photovoltaic power generation Y IKBE WS
(Note)
Sales of lighting products PRAEmMEE

Note: Revenue from photovoltaic power generation included
tariff adjustment from the state grid company in the PRC
based on the prevailing nationwide government policies
on renewable energy for solar power plants amounting to
RMB126,443,000 (equivalent to HK$147,714,000) (2015:
nil).

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the
revenues and profits from different types of business
divisions.

The Group was previously organised into three operating
segments, namely “Portable lighting”, “Shades” and
“Furniture set and other home accessory products”. These
segments were the basis on which the Group reported
its segment information. During the year, the CODM
of the Company reviewed separately the financial
results of photovoltaic power generation business and
lighting products business for resources allocation and
performance assessment of the Group. Accordingly,
the Group's operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Photovoltaic power generation business represents
sales of electricity, development, construction,
management and operation of a solar power plant
("photovoltaic power generation”).

(ii) Lighting product business represents the sales
of lighting products including portable lighting
products, shades for the lamps and furniture set
and other home accessory products (“sales of
lighting products”).

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE
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FET FH&T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—"F+ZA=+—HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W&k BERE)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results PEBU R R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and T RIZEENHE MO AREE KRG RFEE
results by operating segments. DT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-—R"F+-A=+—-HLFE
Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products
KRBE REEMHEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
SEGMENT REVENUE 72 B W
External sales SNEBEHE 198,635 412,422 611,057
Segment profit 7 2B K 156,928 10,406 167,334
Unallocated income RABLUWA 7
Unallocated expenses RABEFRAX
— Administration expenses —1THHX (18,642)
— Finance costs —BIER (2,725)
Profit before taxation R 5 AT 145,974
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BHEe_ZT—AF+_-_A=+—HILFE
Photovoltaic Sales of
power lighting
generation products
HREE  RBPEEREE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHIT FHTT
SEGMENT REVENUE 2 B W
External sales SNERSH & - 389,740 389,740
Segment profit 73 #B s A - 22,721 22,721
Unallocated income FVa L ON 48
Unallocated expenses A B (3,607)
Profit before taxation B AR A 19,162
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WKEkosHERE)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHKREREE(E)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment and hence is arrived at without allocation
of certain income and expenses (including other income,
administration expenses and finance costs). This is the
measure reported to the CODM of the Company, for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and North America.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers based on the location of goods physically
delivered to and location of electricity transmission
and information about its non-current assets based on
geograpbhical location of the assets:

RED SR BR AN E3IME M AN KE
ST BEAAR o 2 8 FlHE & 0 BmEU i
Ao A SRS A TRARBX (BFEE
RA - TTBES KB ER)FE < 1A
ARBEBLERRAMENTE - Af#E
TERD B MFHE D #RRIR

EE R
AEEXEBUREE TR(TEEEE)R
JESEM -

AEEREBEAEEREINEMH LI NE T
BRr e D REINBEF W RIRE
ENIELES D HIERBDEENER -

Non-current assets

AN

(other than
deferred tax asset)

Revenue from
external customers

ERBEE

REIIMEREF Wi QEERIEEERRI)
2016 2015 2016 PAONES)
ZE-XRFE —T-HF ZEBE—-ARF —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FBTT FExT FATT
Hong Kong BB - - 6,007 1,305
PRC =8 198,635 - 61,776 1,862
USA EH 405,904 382,707 3,459 2,479
Canada mEXR 6,241 6,754 - -
Others Hith 277 279 - -
611,057 389,740 71,242 5,646
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Customer A (Note) EPAME)
Customer B (Note) ZFEB(KIFE)
Customer C (Note) BEPECHE)

Note: The revenue from Customer A was derived from
photovoltaic power generation and Customers B and C
were derived from sales of lighting products.

6. OTHER INCOME 6.

Government grants (Note) BRI B (B 3E)
Interest income M2
Sundry income FETEM R

Note: The government grants represent the amount received
from local government by the PRC subsidiary of the
Group in subsidising certain tax payments. Government
grants represent unconditional incentive received in
relation to activities carried out by the Group.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7.

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
Less: Amounts capitalised in the cost of
qualifying assets BIFRIE

100
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REEFE  HAREREAEEIBI0%H
ER Y amEsmT

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T TAT
198,635 -
144,386 155,178
131,277 116,845
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. i
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2016 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRBADEF
2016 2015
=BT —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at MR #LRT R A E 0B
after charging: THI| &8 :
Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration EBIRAN(BIEEEHME)
(note 10) (K$3E10)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENRHEMET 42,233 32,673
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREAFT 2R 1,037 869
43,270 33,542
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZIREMH 990 -
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving B ST SR
inventories 244 353
Amortisation of intangible asset A A 97 97
Auditor’s remuneration % SR BN & 1,160 820
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BEERARTNTFERA 333,500 307,278
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « &= M&EITE 2,580 1,622
Net foreign exchange loss ME 5 185 RE 138 860
Operating lease rentals N itk
— rented premises —HEmE 11,622 6,174
— photovoltaic facilities — R IREHE 47,511 -
Research and development expenses, MEMAST - BFEEIRA
including staff costs of HK$3,521,000 3,521,000 7T
(2015: HK$2,702,000) —E—RHF:
2,702,00077T) 6,384 5,955
and after crediting: REETA :
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEWE - BER
equipment Bl 120 -
Interest income FE YA 93 51

101

FAN



YA

China Baofeng (International) Limited FEZE L (HE)ERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR MY et
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ARRRNY 1‘\\

A

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MEBMAX
2016 PAONES)
—E—RE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT T
Current taxation: BIHARH IR -

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBHNER 4,164 4,793
— Overseas taxation — /BN IE 2 7
4,166 4,800

(Over)underprovision in prior years: FFE(BRE)TREE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH (19) 425
— Overseas taxation —BINRIR - (433)
(19) (8)
Deferred taxation (note 14) EIEFRTE (M52 14) 282 (62)
Total s 4,429 4,730

102

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

A subsidiary of the Company, being an enterprise
engaged in public infrastructure projects, under the
PRC Tax Law and its relevant regulations, is entitled to
tax holiday of 3-year full exemption followed by 3-year
50% exemption commencing from the respective
year in which operating profit was derived. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the subsidiary
of the Company which was engaged in the public
infrastructure project has operating profit for the first
year.

It R M 5 2 A 2 fil R R RR O B B 1R AR R
16.5%HMEBEBFIFH

5 B 6 B I8 T AR IR R A fih 5t 8 SR A 4 A
AR ERERERITHEGH -

ARA—FREAKXERRBEENOMNER
A REFEFEMEEERLE  AREX
BEERELENAMBEARFERE =FRHK
HRHEE=ZFRH50%  HE-_ZT—NFE+
“RA=t-HLEFERRRARNENHLERR
RIEEE 2B AR RS EENE—F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_ZT—A"F+-_A=+—ALFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FrEHExZ®)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled FRNAEHBE Y ERESBRBADEN SERM T ¢

to the consolidated profit before taxation as follows:

2016 AN IS
—EB—REF —ET-RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT THIT
Profit before taxation BB AR A 145,974 19,162
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBREBHE
at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 16.5% 5T & KT IE
—F—FF :16.5%) 24,086 3,162
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for T MBRAZ OB KR
tax purpose 1,656 513
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 7B R i Ug A BT 75 22 £ (2,430) (5)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBEENRGTE 6,518 913
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FEBARZEA R
PRC subsidiaries M E (39,232) -
Tax effect of different tax rate of H b B AR E A A
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions MEAEOBRIETE 13,764 230
Overprovision in prior years T ERERE (19) (8)
Others HAtb 86 (75)
Income tax expense for the year FRFAEHAX 4,429 4,730
DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 10. EEX FETHRABREEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the Directors MEEERNDHN  ENAKATIESERETET
and the chief executive of the Company during both MAEZHEHBENT

years are as follow:

2016 PAONES)

—E—XRF —E—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T

Directors’ fee EEEE 1,135 360
Other emoluments H 0 A

— salaries and other benefits — e hEMmETR 3,227 4,243

— retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIRB IR 26 98

4,388 4,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B AR MY et

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 10. BEE - FETHAEREEMES (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other Performance- scheme
Fees benefits  based bonus contributions Total

HER BIEN

e Htn g RARA FTEIER @t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx ThEx TAx TEx Tax
(Note i)
(Kt

For the year ended 31 December HZ=-Z-A~%

2016 TZA=T-RLEFE
Executive directors: HnIEE:
Mr. Dang Yanbao (Note i) EE R (M) S 1,708 - - 1,708
Mr. Dang Zidong (Note i) EBREE(MHI) = 208 = 10 218
Mr. Gao Jianjun (Note i) REF LA (M) = 330 = - 330
Mr. Liu Yuanguan (Note i) B 5 () - 330 - - 330
Mr. Leung Yuen Ho, Simon (Note iii) 2 & 44 (Fitz¥iii) - 240 - 3 U3
Mr. Jerry Strickland (Note i) Jerry Strickland %t &
(Fitsii) - 258 - 10 268
Ms. Wong Shuk Fong (Note i) B &L (M) - 153 - 3 156
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Cheng Hoo (Note ii) LES AL Ed)) 208 - - - 208
Mr. Chung Kin Shun, Jimmy ERR LA
(Note ii) 97 - - - 97
Independent non-executive directors: BUFFEHTEE -
Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony B E 5 A (P i)

(Note ii) 311 - - - 311
Mr. Xia Zuoguan (Note i) B2 A (M) 208 = - - 208
Mr. Guo Xuewen (Note ii) LS A (M) 311 = - - 311
Mr. Hau Chi Hung (Note i) RE R £ (W) = - - - -
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome (Note i) TRBE LA (P - = = - -
Mr. Tang Thomas Bong (Note i) BRZ84E 4 (i) - = = - -

1,135 3,221 - 26 4,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 10. BEE - FETHAEREEMES (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement

Salaries benefits
and other  Performance- scheme
benefits  based bonus comnbut\ons

X
A thigH RAAL e gt
HK$'000 HK$ ooo HK$'000
T 5 BT THIL

For the year ended 31 December 2015 QT_ —E-1f

=t-ALEE
Executive directors: BiTEE:
Mr. Leung Yuen Ho, Simon (Note i) PR (ki) - 1,560 - 18 1578
Mr. Jerry Strickland (Note i) Jerry Strickland % £
(HsEiii) - 1,586 - 62 1,648
Ms. Wong Shuk Fong (Note iii) B L (i) - 897 200 18 1,115
Independent non-executive directors: BV IEHTES
Mr. Hau Chi Hung (Note ii) RS (i) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome (Note iii) BRA 5% A (W i) 240 - - - 240
Mr. Tang Thomas Bong (Note iii) B 5 A (Wi aiii) 60 - - - 60
360 4,043 200 98 4,701

Notes: Pt aE -

(i) The performance-based bonus is discretionary (i) R /AL EE{KEZKEIHH%
based on the Group's financial results and directors’ EEREERY | BRTE B ©
performance as decided by the management of the
Group.

(i) Mr. Dang Yanbao is also the chief executive of the (i) EEELEDARRATRAE » EXH
Company and his emoluments disclosed above BoMeaERATHRES S HERRS
included those for services rendered by him as the ElEze  EEBXE SREFEER
Chief Executive. Mr. Dang Yanbao, Mr. Gao Jianjun BTEXECREZEERITESE B _F
and Mr. Liu Yuanguan were appointed as executive —NF—A=Z1+HBER: EARLED
directors effective from 30 January 2016; Mr. Dang BZEARNTESE H-T—A~"F_AT
Zidong was appointed as an executive director effective NERER: BREERBEREEDE
from 19 February 2016; Mr. Cheng Hoo and Mr. Chung ZARFATESE DB REF=
Kin Shun, Jimmy were appointed as non-executive ATABR-Z—XREALA-TREREE
directors effective from 19 February 2016 and 26 B HMEBLEE  BEEZEERPEX G
September 2016, respectively; Mr. Tyen Kan Hee, FEREZERBYFNTESE BH-_T—
Anthony, Mr. Xia Zuoquan and Mr. Guo Xuewen were NEZATNBRENY -
appointed as independent non-executive directors
effective from 19 February 2016.

(iii) Ms. Wong Shuk Fong was appointed as executive (iii) ERFLTR_FE—RAFELA=-+=H
director on 22 July 2015. Mr. Leung Yuen Ho, Simon, WEDBNTES - DEZEE - lerr
Mr. Jerry Strickland and Ms. Wong Shuk Fong resigned Str|ck|and§'ﬁE&%/ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁ
as executive directors; and Mr. Hau Chi Hung, Mr. Lai £REBEEHELEE  BRRILERSHALE
Kin, Jerome and Mr. Tang Thomas Bong resigned as E%?EE?%I?E%M‘T%% CEZE-RFZ
independent non-executive directors effective from 19 A+ BRER -

February 2016.

(iv) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above (iv) ENFEBTEE e DEBEERER
were for their services in connection with the RAARIRAEBEBIRMREE @ 2 M
management of the affairs of the Company and the © o ENEHIFRTESRBUIFNITE
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors e HEEEUARRRES S HIZMH
and independent non-executive directors shown above REEEZEE -

were for their services as directors of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND 10.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
one (2015: three) director for the year. The details of the
emoluments are set out above. The remunerations of
the remaining four (2015: two) highest paid individuals
are as follows:

EE  FETBRAEREEM=(#)

TEREHAL
FRAEERARRFALEE —RES
(ZZF—h%F: =8) HEFBEHARNLEX -
HHpMNESEaHAL(ZE—0F - &)W
BT

2016 PAONES)
—E—-RF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT THEIT

Employees ==
— salaries and other benefits —HeMEMET 5,144 2,030
— discretionary bonus —BYIBIEAL 902 78
— retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIRB R I R 140 82
6,186 2,190

The emoluments of these remaining four (2015: two)
highest paid individuals in the Group for the year were
within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,0018LE

2,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No directors waived any emoluments in both
years.

11. DIVIDEND 11.
The Board has resolved not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
nil).
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HHEOMEZ(ZZ2—1F : MB)AEERS
HEALRFANMSEATEERA

2016 2015
—EB-AF —T-hF
No. of No. of
Employees Employees
EE®E EE &R

2 2

2 —

4 2

EREFERN  AEERERTAZSHA
T(BREERER)XNERAGHM - (FAR
SIMEMARMAREERGNEE - HIER
E‘E%‘%%ﬁ%ﬁ - MEEENMEFEANEREM
#E o

RS
EERRTERRERHE_T—RFE+ =
A=+—BLEFEZEMRPRE(ZT—H
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$141,545,000 (2015: HK$14,432,000)
and the weighted average number of 518,709,000
ordinary shares (2015: 480,000,000) of the Company.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12.

13.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

BRER
FRERBRITVIEARARNRHEA AEEFE
N % % 141,545,000 T (T — A &F
14,432,000 70 ) K AR )& @ A% paE 19 %
#(518,709,000/% ( —Z — = 4F : 480,000,000
fR)ETE -
BE-ZT-—AFR-_F-AF+_A=+—
AIEFEAMESRITEELER ML E
25| 3REERT -

M - BERRE

Furniture,

Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction Solar
buildings improvements  equipment vehicles in progress  power plant
HENE G 4B

1hRES %6 &L hE ERIR ABHBER

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fin BT BT Tin B BT
CosT A
At 1 January 2015 R-B-1%E-f-H 1910 2,456 5819 4,100 - - 14,285
Exchange adjustment Exaz - (112) (76) - - - (188)
Additions FE - 19 1,2 - - - 1,241
At 31 December 2015and  R-E-TET-A=+-RHk
1 January 2016 “F-1E-A-H 1910 2363 6,965 4,100 - - 15,338
Exchange adjustment B - (162) (117 - (2,954) 22) (3,255)
Additions HE - 2872 1677 866 63,407 503 69,325
Transfer R - - - - (37,419) 37,419 -
Disposals e - - - (702) - - (702)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+-ZA=1-H 1910 5,073 8,525 4,264 23,034 37,900 80,706
ACCUMULATED iHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%5-F-H 914 694 3457 3,847 - - 8912
Exchange adjustment Exaz - (48) (38) - - - (86)
Provided for the year EREE 76 489 827 230 - - 1,622
At31 December 2015and  R-ZE-RET-A=1-Ak
1 January 2016 “F-1E-A-H 990 1,135 4,246 4,077 - - 10,448
Exchange adjustment EiAZ - (90) (78) - - (22) (190)
Provided for the year ik 76 1133 704 164 - 503 2,580
Eliminated on disposals ~ RHERH - - - (702) . - (702)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~ETZA=T-A 1,066 2,178 487 3,539 - 481 12,136
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2016 R ETZA=T-A 844 2,895 3,653 725 23,034 37,419 68,570
At 31 December 2015 RoB-RET-F=1-A 920 1,28 2719 e - - 4,890
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y¥  BERRZREE)

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other FilE  HMERKREEBR (EEZITERBR)

than construction in progress are depreciated on a TIABER TOFERIFTE -

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings 4% or over the term of +H MAEF 4% IREE(AREE
the lease, whichever is BAE)
shorter

Leasehold improvements  20% or over the lease HEMERE 20% IR EMENM
term of rented properties, BA( LA & BYE)
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33% RE - HENEKHE 20% -33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20% b 20%

Solar power plant 4% NG AEEA 4%

The carrying value of land and buildings comprises: T RETFHEEEAE

2016 AONES)

ZE-AF —ZE-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET

Land and buildings situated in Hong Kong BT REF 844 920
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged its RZE-—R"F+ZA=+—H KXEEE
land and buildings with carrying value of HK$844,000 IR E BRE (E 5844,0008 L (T —HF ¢
(2015: HK$920,000) to secure a general banking facility 920,000 L) ML RETF - (EAREBEE

granted to the Group. BT —RRBITREMER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

DEFERRED TAXATION 14. EZEHE
The followings are the major deferred tax asset (liability) LNTAESEMFFEEZANTERIERIBESE
recognised and movements thereon during current and EARE)REEH
prior years:
Temporary
difference on
unrealised
profits on
Accelerated tax intra-group
depreciation transactions
£EHR
ARBERS
mE REBBBFH
HIERE ERHER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RAF—HA—H (83) 1,193 1,110
Credit (charge) to profit or loss Et Az (A1EZEHIR) 80 (18) 62
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RHF+=H
1 January 2016 =t+—BK
—E-RF—-H—H (3) 1,175 1,172
Charge to profit or loss B (85) (197) (282)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=A
=+—H (88) 978 890

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax asset BT IBEE
Deferred tax liability ELEFIRAE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$52,801,000 (2015:
HK$14,937,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams of these subsidiaries.

Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$14,565,000 (2015: HK$8,936,000) that will expire
within 5 years and losses of HK$11,424,000 (2015:
HK$1,426,000) that will expire within 20 years, other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

AT BRI T5 RREEE R B AT -

2016 2015
—E-AF —T-hF
HK$"000 HK$'000
T THT
978 1,175

(88) 3)

890 1,172

RBMERR AEEBZ2RXPAREEES
52,801,000/8L(=ZZF—AHF : 14,937,000/8
JO) A AR R K R A o AR AREETERIZE
BB A BB 2R 3R 5 A AROR - B0 4 B B S
BRERELEHBEE -

RAERNRBEELEBERLTRIENEG
$814,565,000/8 7L ( —Z — A 4F : 8,936,000
BIT) M E —+FREIHEE11,424,000
BIL(ZZT—FR4F ¢ 1,426,00057) © EfthFx
TH &5 18 1] £E PR B 4E o -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

14.

15.

16.

110

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the
subsidiaries in the PRC amounting of HK$152,539,000
(2015: nil) as the Directors are of the opinion that the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

14.

15.

EERIEZ)
AREERWHBEARRPEBRINE TR
IRAR 2% M4 %8152,539,00008 (& —H
FoE)WERRELERE  THREERE
AREEAES R EEAORL SRR ERE
BN RN A B8 kEE -

BVEE

Brand name

)
HK$'000
THEIT
COST [S&
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and NRZE—hF—A—B —ZT—HF+=A
31 December 2016 =t+-—-Bk_ZE—XRF+-A=+—H 966
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2015 WZE—hF—H—H 113
Charge for the year FAZH 97
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=+—HBK
—E—-X&—HA—H 210
Charge for the year FAZH 97
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARFE+ZA=+—8 307
CARRYING VALUE AREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+=ZA=+—8 659
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-_A=+—8 756

The brand name has finite useful life and is amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years.

INVENTORIES

16.

M2 AIERMMAR - I EREIRI0F#

r&

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT

Finished goods AL

During the year, there was a write-down of inventories
amounting to HK$244,000 (2015: HK$353,000) which
was recognised in cost of sales.

21,615 31,089

FE R LT E244,0008 T (=2 —FH4F
353,000/ 70) @ W SHER AR ©



17.

Annual Report 2016 —Z—XFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-—T—<E+-A=t—HILFE
17. EFREMERRIE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T T
Trade receivables 2 5 W GRIA 97,073 83,455
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIEARAEE (990) -
96,083 83,455
Tariff adjustment receivables (Note (a)) EXEE RS €
(Kf7EGa) 167,000 -
Total trade receivables and tariff adjustment B RKRRERE
receivables FEU R IB 4258 263,083 83,455
Bill receivables FEJ%ZZJF 3,675 164
Advance to a photovoltaic facilities provider HEF R B B
(Note (b)) (Bt3E(b)) 44,643 -
Other receivables and prepayment o e Wk I8 R TR 3R 1,268 772
312,669 84,391

Notes: BsT -

(a) The Group's tariff adjustment receivables for the (a) REBNRBREEEHZEWRIE A E R
photovoltaic power generation are receivables from the BHREPAAGTHIE - BHEWZEBER
state grid company. Generally, the trade receivables BEOHEI30BREE  HAFHEBK
are due within 30 days from the date of billing, except ﬁ =) EEQA"EE%I%EZH Eik-9a
for collection of the tariff adjustment receivables, BENBRREBHA QAU E /) E B A E IR

which is subject to settlement by state grid company
upon finalisation of the allocation of funds by relevant
government authorities to the state grid company.
As the collection of tariff adjustment receivables is
expected in the normal operating cycle, which may be
more than 1 year, they are classified as current assets.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
revenue recognition of tariff adjustment is proper
based on their judgement and taking into account
the opinion from the Group’s PRC legal advisor, that
the Group’s operating solar power plant has qualified
for registration in the Catalogue, and has met all
the relevant requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Catalogue. The Directors of the
Company are confident that the Group’s operating
solar power plant is able to be registered in the
Catalogue in due course and the tariff adjustment
receivables are fully recoverable upon the allocation of
funds from the PRC government.

The amount represented payment on behalf of a
photovoltaic facilities provider for the purchase of
photovoltaic facilities. The amount was non-interest
bearing and the Directors of the Company consider
the amount would be settled within one year after the
reporting period upon renewal of the rental agreement
for photovoltaic facilities.

IEE'JB‘MI\ ° EEJECTE,E;@ECIE%“ CEEM(RE
BE—F)NKOEBEARERTIE  HE
EBREEREGADBRRBEE -

ARBEERR  BREHAB L RAE
EhEZREENERYEERNEELZ
WHERBIRE - AEEDBEERERMR
R AEERENRKGREZEERENEE
BRRBEER  WREBELABHNME
E%%ﬁ&w#°$ﬂﬂ§$§%'$$
ERENKGREETHHAINEEREE

ABHAN - BEERBEEREGRES TR
B BT & A S R BT DALRE o

ZREERR KRB REEREE K
REZNOHRE - ZRERRE - BAR
REERR  ZRELRBERER-FA

EEAAREOEERRREH -

1
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17.

112

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group allows credit period with a range from 30
to 90 days to its customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables and tariff adjustment
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date for sales of goods
and electricity transmitted dates at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates.

Not yet due (Note)

0 to 30 days 0Z30H

31 to 60 days 31&260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days HBiE0H

Note: The amounts represent tariff adjustments to be
received based on the prevailing national government
policies on renewable energy.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the credit quality of each potential customer and
defines credit rating and limit for each customer. In
addition, the Group has reviewed the repayment history
of receivables by each customer with reference to the
payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$13,674,000
(2015: HK$9,777,000), which are past due for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Such
receivables relate to a number of customers from which
substantial subsequent settlements were received. The
aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

17.

AREINH (M)

Overdue by: 2 %0 81
1 to 30 days 1230H
31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days B0 H

BZ REMBEYREE)

ARERTEBEIEPNFI0E0HNEE
Hi o TREHNIWE MR E 5 & UG M
EEFERUNE HIBRRERER  KE
miHERZ R RENEG B PR KEKR
oI - %% B HEEE 5 KRR B BRI

2016 2015
—E—REF —FT—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
167,000 -
42,875 79,114
26,584 1,402
16,680 13
9,944 2,926
263,083 83,455

et ZFEEREBEBRYAIBERRNRTE
BIBR A AN EE A -

REZETMHELH  ARESHEERE
EPHNEEERRATEREPNERNL
TIREE - IS AEBERHESRARLBE
BERUGRIBEM LS - W2 Z LMY
IR - AEETE B 5 MR WA A AT Y@ 1

AEBNESRKFBLESBIERTARES
13,674,000 T EWER(ZE—HF -
9,777,000/ 70) + BEEAREE B - EAE
B ES I IER R EEEREE AEEWE
MZEEREETMETR - ZSEWEE
WMEZHEPER - HEoWE KI5 KA -
ZEEPERWIE ZRESTOT ¢

2016 2015

—E—XRF —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET

8,101 6,877

1,717 15

889 17

2,967 2,868

13,674 9,777
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.
(Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables is as follows:

At beginning of the year REA)
Impairment loss recognised R R E R 1B
At end of the year RER

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 18.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.30% per annum as at 31 December
2016 (2015: 0.01% to 0.84% per annum).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19.

Trade payables 2 SRR RIA
Accrued sales commission JEFTHEERS

Other payables and accruals

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranged from 30 to 60 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0&30H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days ##3B90H

H At JE A 3R IR B A R

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

B REMERE
HREGHEZ RELEZBHMT ;

%08 (45)

2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
990 -

990 -

ﬁE{Tn\Hﬁ#&Iﬁa%
R-_E—XRF+_A=+—8"
MEZFFE0.01EZ030E(ZF—
MZ0.01EE0.84F )5t E °

RITEEBR A
HEF F

BEZREMENKE
2016 2015
—g—xE  —F-EF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHBT T
40,170 45,190
572 268
23,578 6,956
64,320 52,414

HERMGE TAEE0Z60RHEER - T
HINBERRNOEZENHIBREZAH
2T RBRE DT -

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
29,926 31,450
6,248 11,503

875 1,074

3,121 1,163
40,170 45,190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

20. PROVISION
The balance represents the provision of sales discounts
and defective claims, and the movements of provision
are as follow:

20.

]
SR EEERT MRS RERE A TAR
BT

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RAF—A—H 5,290
Charge to profit or loss BEZ MR 9,249
Utilisation of provision BEER (10,063)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-E—RF+-_A=+—8x

—E-RFE-A—H 4,476
Charge to profit or loss SEEEREIICS 13,264
Utilisation of provision B EFE R (10,595)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+-A=+—H 7,145
There are no fixed terms of provision of sales discounts HEPIVHEERZALEHENNRLX
and defective claims stated in the sales agreements EREBEHNETKRR - BESENILEE
entered with customers. The amount of provision is B2 BELRMGT ANEERNHEEREHM
based on the management’s estimation by reference BEEHENTNERAEREZEAGBAENZ

to the historical experience. The Group accrued liability
for potential sales discounts and defective claims at the
time of sale to cover potential liabilities that could arise
under these sales transactions.

21. BANK BORROWING

The carrying amount of the bank borrowing

that contains a repayable on demand clause 171

(shown under current liabilities) but
repayable:
Within one year

The bank borrowing represents a bank loan denominated
in HK$ and carries interest at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 3% per annum. The bank
borrowing is secured by pledge of 252,600,000 shares
of the Company held by Fung Teng Enterprises Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Dang Yanbao, the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company.

114

EoN
B A

21.

FHERZELBLEAR -

2016 2015
—g—xE

—ZE—RHF
HK$'000
T

HK$'000
FERT

FER THIMEEER 2
MAREE -
BAREREERGFR
(RIIRARBEE)
—fF2ZR

250,000 -

RITEFIBUBLHEMNRITERIZE SR
TRERB(BBRTBERSDMIEZF
FIREHE o WIRITERBAD R EERNTT
EREEELEZEMABZEECEERA
AT E AR R F1252,600,000A% AZ {7 H IR o
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SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: AR ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1 January 2015, 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2016

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 1 January 2015, 31 December

2015 and 1 January 2016

Issue of ordinary shares (Note) 1

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 31 December 2016 E’:\ T
Note: During the year, 25,200,000 and 62,496,000 ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.01 per share of the
Company have been placed to independent third
parties at the price of HK$2.41 and HK$3.2 per share,
respectively. The shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects among themselves and with the existing issued
shares. The directors intend to use the net proceeds
to finance the strategic diversification in photovoltaic
power generation business, and as general working

capital for existing operation of the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowing disclosed in note 21,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Group, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly, taking into account of the
cost and risk associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends and issue of shares.

22.

FRMEE0.01BITLE
ﬁ_i AF—H—H"
—RAF+-A=+—HK
—g /\EE ﬂ El
TE B (FEE)

BREE0.01E T LR
NETZA=1+—H

23.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

LN

Share
capital

Number of
shares
;v gE| R 7=
HK$'000

FHTT

HHREE.01B L BB

ﬁé\:;ﬁ—ﬁﬁ—ﬁ—5~
—EFt+tZA=+—HRK
—Z— /\ﬁz"f’ A= ‘f’ H

B

800,000,000 8,000
480,000,000 4,800

87,696,000 877
567,696,000 5,677

Miad: FR A2 FREEL B LY
25,200,000 #% 7 62,496,000 % & @ =
BIABR2 41 T R32EB L2 BREET
BYE=F - ZERMRESHERK I ZME
FEBEEETROZERE - ES
BEMEHREFEAENREEER R
BZTtES  RIEAAEEBEEEEY

—REEESR -
EXEmEE
AEBEEREERN  BEBBAEGEHEES

BELSETE HRARMTIMEY
T 72 B 43 A A 9 A o 5
B F R TR -

AEBHEAR % REFRFE(BENE

QIWBEMIRITER  HBRBEEMIREEED)
MAEEBE ABLER(REEBITRAK

&) o

AEBEEBERRNEANGE  ZEEHE
BARMEOKAMER - RIBAEB K E IR
2 AKESBESIREMBEITRD
A ET R E ARG o

115

\



YA

— 4

ARRRNY 1‘\\

A

ﬁﬁmﬁ&

China Baofeng (International) Limited FEZE L (HE)ERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

24.

116

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

24a.

24b.

24,

B ITE

24a.

Bt % T B35

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT T
Financial assets BB EE
Loans and receivables B W GIE
(including bank balances and cash) (BIERITHHRR
Be) 627,746 103,627
Financial liabilities HKaE
Amortised cost B EEpOR 302,053 45,696
Financial risk management objectives and 24b. HMEEBREEBRERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowing
and amount due to a related company. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has limited currency exposure
as the majority of the revenue were
denominated in functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting date are as follows:

Assets
HK$
Renminbi (“RMB")

Liabilities
HK$

AEENEIERBHETABTEES RHE
bW FRIR ~ RITHEBRNEES - BH
Ko B FEAS AR - SRTT BRI A
BERRRE - REMBTAFBERE
RN TR E - B%FHH T AR
MEREEMSRAR (BREEER
EHZERE) - EERBRERSHES
[\ B o a0 {e] PR B 5 L B WO BUR B R
X -EEEEELREEZFRAR
VAR IR I B B ROt SR BUE B 15 16 ©

45 2 2

(i) SRR
F N £ 81 K 380 0 Wi & DA 4 B
SEER ISR E
HASHEERRAR -

REREHR - REBE UK
AHENEREERBENER
BT :

2016 2015
. s
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT T
BE
BT 500 493
ARB(TARE]) 17 17
=L
BT 250,000 -
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
24b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Assets and liabilities denominated in HK$
mainly represented bank balances placed
with banks and bank borrowing held by
a group entity with US$ as functional
currency. As HK$ is pegged to US$, the
exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rate of HK$ against US$ is considered
insignificant.

No sensitivity analysis for the currency
risk is prepared as the directors of the
Company consider the impact of such
foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowing. The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on HIBOR
arising from the Group's bank borrowing.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure
of the bank balances to interest rate risk
is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period
and thus it is not included in the sensitivity
analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For interest bearing bank
borrowing, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
period. A 50 basis points (2015: nil)
increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

HE-ZT—

R ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NETZA=Z+—HIEFE

24. B I E(#E)
24b. BIHEBRETEEERBE(E)

G E R (&)

(i)

EERR(E)

AT ENEERABGBES
BE—RXUETLANEEENE
EEEFENERTNRITESRR

IRITER - AR B LHEETH
8 BILHETTIERFEHIR
BIRERX -

RRwEEEE RESER
B BRI D T - B AKA E
ERRERINERRNTESR
BR -

= [ B
$%@W7*ﬂfﬁﬁ%%&

BN ERITERAZR SR
iﬂfﬂ c AKRHEZHER
%ﬂTH&IE%¢F$%I
RITE AT 2 BB RITRL
HE -

BREBRITEREMONIE
A REZRAR/AEE
RITH %E&%ﬂTH@IK
BER ARIRBENRBERE
DMTZA e

BURRE DT
ATERE DT TR E R
%F#MEIEZﬂTHMﬁ
o WRETBIRITER %o
ﬁﬂﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ*Z*Eﬁ
BN ERREHANTRE
EmMAEE o HASOEES(=ZF
—hF  E)N EASTRER
EEEHAERIEFNEE(
Z3Fe -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—"F+-_A=+—HLLFE

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

24b.

118

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If interest rate on interest bearing bank
borrowing had been 50 basis points
(2015: nil) higher/lower and all of other
variables were held constant, the profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,044,000 (2015: nil).

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk. At 31 December 2016, 66% (2015: 32%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer, while 93% (2015:
87%) of the total trade receivables and tariff
adjustment receivables was due from the Group's
five largest customers at 31 December 2016.
These customers have good repayment history
and credit quality under internal assessment
by the Group. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the level of exposure by frequent review
of the credit evaluation and credit qualities of
its customers to ensure that prompt actions will
be taken to lower exposure. At 31 December
2016, advance to a photovoltaic facilities provider
amounting to HK$44,643,000 (2015: nil) was
due from a photovoltaic facilities provider. The
Directors of the Company continuously monitor
the level of exposure to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover the amount. The
Directors of the Company consider the amount
would be settled within one year after the
reporting period upon renewal of the rental
agreement for photovoltaic facilities.

TR ®E)
24b. BIHEBRETEEERBE(E)

i AC=D

(ii) ?U7?T1 2 (48)
BRERE DT (&)
i 5t BRI A R F %
SOREZ(ZZE—HF : &)
BFiEEMESRETE B
HE2_Z—XRF+-_A=+-—
HBIEFEZHZMBEFHLY
1,044,000 T( =& — A F :
") -

EEER
AEBERYFHREEBITEEEHA
SEELAMBEREMAINRSEER
R\l - Ty R A B IS AR 0L AR R AR Y B
BEERAE ABEERREER
K> AEEEEENHREHPRENS
@5 E S EBH R YOl 58 - LARELR
AT AT U (O] 2 B8 1 ) B SR (B RS 1
e it NRRAREER/AEEN
EERBRS AXREREE

/\fﬁ‘f“_ﬁ_‘f‘ E| 66%5’]%3%
EWREABIEVAEEREARF
RE(ZZE—FF :32%)  MR=-Z

/\\i"f’ B=+—H " 93%ME5
JEW TR N BEREEWFIBATTY
ERAEERARPHRE(ZZE—H
¢ 1 87%) o BIBEANEREAZBELE - 7%

ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂmﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg
% AEEREEERR  £A2A
EEB ﬁ%mﬁEﬁMﬁ ﬁ%&%
BEE BEEEEBRER AR
&%RWH@M@H%OF—E——
F+-A=1+—8 KT KX
%ﬁ@%m&@pm%ﬁczgfﬁ
F ) BEBGLIRER A E R FUE -
NN R E BB R A R A E /K
o AR ERIBESERE S ES
o ARREERE  ZAHXBEBNR
LHE - FREENRRIENTHE D

o
RBEEE o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

24b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
borrowing with a repayable on demand clause is
included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the bank choosing to exercise
the right. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
undiscounted cash flows and principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables

24,

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_ZT—A"F+-_A=+—ALFE

MBI AR5

24b.

MBEREZEERBE(E)

B E R

EEERDESARE  AEREER
V#HFRELREFEYNEEER
TEFRRHVIKF - AR ARNEEER 2 E
RHESMRERSRERPNTE

TRAVARNEEFTEVHRBERT
BHHR o TRIIREAS H A] 881
EREFNEFARFENRBAR
ABRBRERERHE - ABMEF - &
BIREZBRERGEFORITERIDA
RPEEHHEER > MAWRTEE A BEE
BITEERER - HIETEMHAE
ZEER T A EER B R ASRELE -
TERERAURARAERERASRS

==
JILEE °

nBEER

FAN

Weighted
average Total Total
effective  Repayable Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand 3months  cash flows amount
MERK KB
THNE  REXEE  OM3MER REREAE REELER
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THRR THT
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE
tZA=t+-H
Trade and other payables BHRAMENTIE - - 52,053 52,053 52,053
Bank borrowing BITER 3.88 250,000 - 250,000 250,000
250,000 52,053 302,053 302,053
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1E
tZAZt-H
Trade and other payables BHRAMENTIE - - 45,458 45,458 45,458
Amount due to a related ERBEARFE
company (Note 28(a)) GEEE) - 238 - 238 238
238 45,458 45,69 45,696
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24.

25.

120

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

24b.

24c.

Note:

The bank borrowing with a repayment on
demand clause is included in the “repayable
on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2016, the
aggregate carrying amounts of the bank
borrowing amounted to HK$250,000,000.
Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors of the Company do
not believe that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors of the
Company believe that such bank borrowing
would be repaid within one year after the
end of the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment date set out
in bank borrowing agreement. At that time,
the undiscounted cash outflows amounted to
HK$252,425,000 (2015: nil) at 31 December
2016.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis. The directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair

values.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

24,

25.

B ITRE)
24b. BIHEBRETEEERBE(E)

B E L E R (E)
mEBERR(E)

GEX

24c. A¥E
)

BEBEERERIERMRITERE
A EZIEIB DA [ ERkEE]
MEMEER - R-_ZT— R Ft+=
A=+—8  RITERNEEAE
250,000,000 7T ° &£EEARE
BT BRI  RABEBRAIR
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁH@'I%*%EE*EDH%E?M‘J
BEETR - ARBIESHE - &%
i&«ﬂ%%ﬂﬁffﬂﬁ BRMETH
WA EERBHRREHRE —
FREE -EBF R_ZT—XRE+
—AZt+—HANXRMBEBRESREA
252,425,000 0 (=T — R F :
) o

MEEERMBABHAFEDIRE
AREBRAUMBRRSRENNE
T ARAEERREAYMBHHRRTP
PIT 78 4% 8 56 A AN 5 B B9 B 75 B B Ko B

KaENREERAATERS
REHE
AEEERRBA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating 4 A Y2 R YL R 3836

leases in respect of rented premises and KEAEETENHIE
photovoltaic facilities during the year HEE

2016
—E-AF

2015
—EAEF
HK$"000
FHET

HK$°000
FERT

59,133 6,174
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OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

—&FR

Operating lease payments represents rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its staff quarters and office
premises and photovoltaic facilities.

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease
terms ranged from one to three years (2015: one to
three years).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs with the
maximum monthly amount of HK$1,500 to the scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified range
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The Group's subsidiaries in USA operate defined
contribution schemes. Contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are made at a certain percentage
of the employee’s payroll.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$1,037,000 (2015: HK$869,000) for the year ended
31 December 2016 represents contributions payable to
these schemes.

25,

“EHRF

26.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

KRE\E(®)
RBEEFK  REEBEFAREELHE
KRR EE A SR EA OB R T

2016 2015

—B-AF -

HK$°000 HK$'000

T TAT

11,481 4,012

16,629 1,816

28,110 5,828

MEHERBEEAKERAETRIRS -
MAEYRRARRIEEN 2B -

BMEDEE ER  HeBE BN T —
E=F(ZT—HF: —E=F)-

RKEF TS
AEEREREEAEBRREERILEHER
BEatal c LB EERAKBEED R
B ERREEAMEFNESA - NEME
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ@%iﬁ$ﬁ%m1ﬂ 5 A

=B RA1,500/8 7 - KBRS M{EL
%ﬁﬁo

AEBETEMBERARNEERTEBTEE
MBI EREARBEMAEKE - ZEHMBL
M&%iﬁ$m%mflﬁLW@ﬂﬁ%

Wﬁ# o AN SR [ H R IR A 5 & Ay o —
ERERIEEMRRK -

AEBEXBEMBEARREERENGE - E
BURGE N REEFENE TAOLED
1/\/TA ©

HE-_Z—A"F+-_A=Z=+—HLFE R
BEERZFALEREA1,037,0008 T (=&
— R :869,000/87L) - HHENRZEEIE
PR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_T—"F+ZA=+—HLFE
27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. EXREE
2016 2015
—E-RE —RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
-
?.\ Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition YHEWE - BE L& ERD
- of property, plant and equipment contracted B ARHAIE - B 4B
but not provided for REAE 58,766 693
28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 28. BEALTHE
(a) Amount due to a related company (a) FEARBEENTTIE
2016 2015
= —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Todd Miller Inc. (Note) Todd Miller Inc. (Ff&E) = 238
Note: The amount represented the commission Mzt © B RAKIEEE Todd Miller Inc. &y
expense due to Todd Miller Inc. Todd Miller £ R ° Todd Miller Inc.FiTodd
Inc. was controlled by Mr. Todd Miller, who Miller5c 412 % » Todd Millersc 4 A
was a relative of Mr. Jerry Strickland, a former 7K X @) B E& = Jerry Strickland 5t 4
director of the Company. Todd Miller Inc. HIER © Jerry Strickland E £ fH =
was no longer a related party to the Group T-RFEZAThBEHRELARQT
upon the resignation of Mr. Jerry Strickland E=E1  Todd Miller Inc. ~H A4
as director of the Company effective from 19 SBEZBEAL -
February 2016.
The balance was unsecured, interest free and SR AEIE - BB RBRBERER -
repayable on demand.
(b) Transactions with related companies (b) EEBEQTRITINKS

122

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had also entered
into the following transactions with related
parties:

Name of related parties

BEALER

Todd Miller Inc.

MCP Investment, LLC (“MCP")

FERY

Nature of transactions

REME

(EEAZFACIERD

Mefx (fE2)

RYUZERAR

ARAG U A (K FE3)

Rica M BmREMEBY AEES
Hh - REEBEBEALT TG ZATR
5

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
FExT

2015
—HEF
HK$'000
TATT

Commission expenses
(Note 1)

Rental expenses (Note 2)

Service income (Note 3)

178 1,551
306 2,451
16 -
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Transactions with related companies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Notes:

)

The commission expenses paid to Todd Miller
Inc. are for the provision of handling services
to customers for lighting products business of
the Group. The amount is calculated based on
the percentage range from 10% to 13% (2015:
from 10% to 13%) of sales, depending on the
type of products being sold to the customers.
Todd Miller Inc. was no longer a related party
to the Group upon the resignation of Mr. Jerry
Strickland as director of the Company effective
from 19 February 2016.

Mastercraft Distribution USA Inc., an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement with MCP for
a period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016. MCP was a related company controlled
by Mr. Jerry Strickland, a director of the
Company. MCP was no longer a related party
to the Group upon the resignation of Mr. Jerry
Strickland as director of the Company effective
from 19 February 2016.

EEBEENXKRESAHAMAF, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a service agreement with Z &

FEEMIEBMRAA], a private company
incorporated in the PRC which is controlled by
Mr. Dang Yanbao, the Chairman and executive
Director of the Company, with an annual
service income of RMB28,400 (equivalent to
HK$32,000) for the period from 1 July 2016 to
30 June 2018 (subject to automatic renewal in
compliance with applicable laws).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The Directors of the Company represent key
management personnel. The remuneration of
key management personnel is determined by
the Board having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends. Details of
directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10.

HE-ZT—

R ISR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
NETZA=Z+—HIEFE

28. BAEATHEE)
HEREARTINRS (H)

(b)

(c)

GEX

(1M

AREBEE [ATodd Miller Inc. 3z (- A&
AEBERPEREBEFPRMER
BHEeRX - AERIERE
HELEI0%E13% (2 — R 4F :
10%£213% )M BEDLLETE - /F
MEFPHEMNEMRERME ° Jerry
Strickland%t £l =ZF —~F = A
+HBEREEARIFEEE  Todd
Miller Inc. "B AXAEE 2 B&EA
+

ApalzBE2ENE QA
Mastercraft Distribution USA Inc.
HEMCPFI B _-_ZT—NHE—-HF—H
E-E-XE+_A=+—HHA
E s - MCPR&Jerry Strickland %
E(RRBIES)EHIEER A
Jerry Strickland e £ =& — N F
ZAThBEBREAQARESE
MCPREAAREE 2 BEAL -

ARRIZEEEZENBAREEE
BRREEFRAFHEEEY
RIS ER QA LREEH - K
—E-XRFtrtA—BE-ZE—NF
NA=THEBME(AIREEREES
BE)ENEL X RFERSER
AR #28,4007T (FH£7432,0007%8
JL) o BEHIB BRP B2
FLARA]  ARRBIEFRANITE
EEEB AT -

TEEEASHMH

ARBEZRTBEEEAR - B
E%AEZM&TJ%%%%%%%MA%

BT 5E

BREE ZEFMEFB

HHHIFE10 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—"F+ZA=+—HLFE

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 29. FATZKMEBERQRFE
COMPANY

Place of Principle Equity interest Issued and fully
incorporation/ place of attributable paid share/
Name of subsidiary establishment operation to the Group registered capital Principal activities

EMmL/ E F5H ERTRAR

MELARZE P 3L 3t 2 S FEqk R RE RA/FREAR TEEK
As at 31 December
K+=A=1+—-H
2016 2015
ZE-AE —T-0&

Directly owned

EEER
Mastercraft Worldwide Limited ~ The British Virgin BV 100% 100%  US$6 Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") REREZEE ordinary shares AR
((RBRL#S]) 6ETERK
Jing Pai Management Limited BVI BVI 100% - US$1 Investment holding
RREBBRAF RERLEE ABEREHE ordinary shares  1REAHERR
1ETERR
Stand Nice Limited Hong Kong HK 100% - HK$1 Provision of
RIBRAR ("HK") £ ordinary shares administrative
BE(EED BT EER services
REITERS
Indirectly owned
MRS
Mastercraft International Limited HK HK 100% 100%  HK$348,900 Design and supply
SttEERERAR N N ordinary shares chain business
348,900 L EBA  of lightings and
home furnishing
products
RARRESm
R R EEER
Mastercraft China Limited HK HK 100% 100%  HK$2 Production of
SHEREERAR 5 £ ordinary shares prototypes of
2RTEBR lightings and
home furnishing
products
RARKESm
Bk E
Mastercraft Home Furnishing PRC PRC 100% 100%  HK$3,000,000 Production of
Development (Dongguan) o I registered capital  prototypes of
Limited 3,000,000/ L& lightings and
SHERMHE(RE) BX home furnishing
ARRA products
REA N R
REE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 29. RATFZHMBARFEE)
COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Principle Equity interest Issued and fully
incorporation/ place of attributable paid share/

Name of subsidiary establishment operation to the Group registered capital  Principal activities
R, IE rEE ERTRERE

MEAREHE B0 3t B EES FE1 B RE BRA/ FRER TEER
As at 31 December
RT=A=1—H
2016 2015
“E-X"E —T-hF

AN

Indirectly owned (Continued)

BEREA(E)
Mastercraft Overseas Limited BVI BVI 100% 100%  US$1 Investment holding
RERAEE HEBEREE ordinary shares  1REAHER
1ETERR
Mastercraft Distribution USA Inc.  USA USA 100% 100%  US$1 Wholesale
%HE %H common stock distribution of
1ETEER lightings and
home furnishing
products
RARRESm
PEDH
Couture Lamps, Inc. USA USA 100% 100%  US$1 Wholesale
X X common stock distribution of
1ETERR lightings and
home furnishing
products
RARRESm
PEDH
Honest Joy International Limited HK HK 100% - HK$1 Investment holding
HHEEERAA 5 £ ordinary shares R ETER
TETEBR
RFEBEGHERER PRC PRC 100% - RMB400,000,000  Investment holding
BRAT HE HE registered capital AR
AR 400,000,0007T
AR
ESELKARBERARA PRC PRC 100% - RMB150,000,000  Photovoltaic power
i i ordinary shares generation
AR150,000,000 HIAEE
3l
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities RREEER  [MEBARBELMEEITE
at the end of both years. &5
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e B ERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILER

30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment in a subsidiary
Rental deposits

Current Assets
Other receivables

Amount due from subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Other payable
Bank borrowing

Net Current (Liabilities) Assets

Net Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

126

30. RQFZHKEER

FRBEE
BRERKB AT
HERE

RBEE
Hfth FE UK IR

& W P 18 2 B R IR
RITHEBREARS

RBAE
H{th FE I 5RIR
RITIEK

RB (BB EEFE

BEFE
MRA R
L@

1

REREZR S

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHT
2,233 -
486,955 16,735
2,013 -
491,201 16,735
373 184
38,546 30,687
12,894 7,682
51,813 38,553
3,072 420
250,000 -
253,072 420
(201,259) 38,133
289,942 54,868
5,677 4,800
284,265 50,068
289,942 54,868
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Movement of reserves:

At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—H—H
Profit and total comprehensive 4 RHF & & B W a5 40 58
income for the year

2014 final dividend paid ZENERIREN
RHIRR S
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—HF+=H
1 January 2016 Z+-HEZZE—RF
—A—A

Loss and total comprehensive FREEREERZERE
expense for the year

Issue of ordinary shares #ITEER

Share issue expenses B ETER

At 31 December 2016 RZZ—XRF+_HA
=+—H

Note: Special reserve represents the difference between
the equity of subsidiary recognised and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to the group reorganisation in 2012.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-Z—XR"F+A=1+—HLFE

30. ARTFZHBERE)
EEEH
Accumulated
Share Special (losses) g
premium reserve profits ——
. ﬁ
’ T —
i KRl —
HK$"000 HK$'000 |
FAET FAET
(Note)
igza)
32,523 16,385 (4,301) 44,607
- - 21,301 21,301
- - (15,840) (15,840)
32,523 16,385 1,160 50,068
- - (22,827) (22,827)
259,842 - - 259,842
(2,818) - - (2,818)
289,547 16,385 (21,667) 284,265
Mzt : ShlFEEEALFE BT TR @mER

BEBRR T —_FREEAIMBBMNHKE
BB AR AR 2 Z5E -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

RESULTS ¥

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—F—A"F —F-hF —F-0OF —F-=Ff —F-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET  FET T#T TER

&
% Revenue Wi 611,057 389,740 373,162 353,057 331,338
— Profit before taxation B AR A 145,974 19,162 30,130 27,558 18,362
g Income tax expense FrEmRX (4,429) (4,730) (6,498) (6,321) (4,058)
——
é Profit for th EREHF 141,545 14,432 23,632 21,237 14,304
,’é rotit ror the year < m ) , , , n
— -
’ ~
g‘ ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LERERE
—
g 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
— —E-ANFE —T-HF -—FT-QNF —FT-=-F —B-=f
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FHET FHET FAT FTAT TR
Total assets BEE 777,985 142,615 133,632 135,979 136,991
Total liabilities FCy=E (321,628) (57,131) (47,402) (58,981) (71,564)
Total equity MRS A5 456,357 85,484 86,230 76,998 65,427
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